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1. CALL TO ORDER

2. DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY INTEREST

3. PRESENTATIONS

4. DELEGATIONS

5. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION

5.1 AC-C 17-2019 3 - 92
2018 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

A presentation will precede this discussion of this item.

6. CONSENT ITEMS FOR INFORMATION

6.1 AC-C 14-2019 93 - 103
Q2 2019 Follow-up Status of Internal Audit Recommendations

6.2 AC-C 15-2019 104 - 105
Internal Audit Plan Progress Update Dashboard

6.3 AC-C 18-2019 106 - 142
A letter from Walter Sendzik, Chair, Niagara Regional Housing Board of
Directors, to Ann-Marie Norio, Regional Clerk, dated April 26, 2019,
respecting 2018 Draft Audited Financial Statements



 
If you require any accommodations for a disability in order to attend or participate in meetings or
events, please contact the Accessibility Advisory Coordinator at 905-980-6000 (office), 289-929-8376
(cellphone) or accessibility@niagararegion.ca (email). 

7. OTHER BUSINESS

8. NEXT MEETING
The next meeting will be held on Monday, June 24, 2019 at 1:00 p.m. in the
Council Chamber.

9. ADJOURNMENT
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Budget Review Committee of the Whole

2018 Consolidated Financial 

Statement Highlights

Audit Committee
May 6, 2019
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Agenda

Year-end Overview

Consolidated Financial Statement Highlights

Audit Findings Report

Next Steps
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Year-end Overview
Activity 2018 2017

Audit Planning Report AC – Sept. 10, 2018 AC – Sept. 18, 2017

CSC – June 6, 2018 N/A

Council – June 14, 2018 N/A

CSC – Sept. 5, 2018 CSC – Sept. 6, 2017

Council – Sept. 13, 2018 Council – Sept. 14, 2017

CSC – Jan. 9, 2019* CSC – Nov. 29, 2017

Council – Jan. 17, 2019 Council – Dec. 7, 2017

CSC – Mar. 20, 2019 CSC – Mar. 7, 2018

Council – Mar. 28, 2019 Council – Mar. 22, 2018

Audit Committee Review May 6, 2019 May 7, 2018

Council Approval May 16, 2019 May 24, 2018
*Memorandum only 

Q2 Financial Update

Q3 Financial Update

Q1 Financial Update

Q4 Financial Update & Year-end 

Transfer report
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Year-end Overview
2018 Year-end Statistics

715 active 
Dept ID’s

across

14 Lines of 
Business

Journal Entries 
Approved

2018 – 3,677
2017 – 3,646 

PO’s greater 
than $25k

2018 – 1,184
2017 – 1,023

Invoices Paid

2018 – 102,407
2017 – 96,075

Basis for 20
financial 

statement 
audit reports 

(including 
ABC’s)

6



2018 Audit Plan Highlights
• Control Reliance Approach 

–Deloitte tested our controls in order to place reliance on them

• Risk Based Approach

–Significant risks were assessed and resulted in specific audit procedures

• Materiality

– Determined on a basis of total revenues

– Misstatements greater than 5% of materiality reported to audit committee

– No corrected or uncorrected misstatements identified or corrected

– Financial statements are free from material misstatements
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Presentation Reconciliation
Key highlights between what you see at Council vs. Audited PSAS financials

Budget Financials Audited Financials

Functional basis – Levy, Rate, Capital Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards

Used for setting tax rates Used for credit rating, annual report, MBN

Encumbrance accounting Accrual accounting

Reserve accounting Excludes reserve transfers

Excludes unfunded liabilities (i.e. EFB, landfill) Includes all liabilities

Capital is based on funding sources Capital is expensed through depreciation

Not consolidated Consolidated

Budget created to manage at program level Audited statements summarized at overall financial position 
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Reconciliation of Surplus 
(in thousands) 2018 2017

Water & Wastewater Surplus  $        2,079  $             89 

Waste Management Surplus            1,551            5,682 

Levy Surplus (Deficit)            1,828           (3,654)

Operating Surplus (per Quarterly 

Financial Update)
           5,458            2,117 

Net Capital Activity         (48,924)         (57,970)

Net Funding Activity          99,998        102,269 

Change in unfunded liabilities          15,296            1,247 

Annual Surplus per PSAS Consolidated 

financial statements
 $      71,828  $      47,663 
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Statement of Operations (Page 6)
Revenues

Budget to Actual (in thousands)  Change 

Budget revenues per Financial Statements  $   973,834 

Significant changes

     Requisitions on local governments (higher supplemental taxes)            3,498 

     User charges  (higher NRH rental revenue,higher parent fee contributions)            2,114 

     Government transfers, Ontario  (SAEO – lower funding as caseloads stabilized)          (5,896)

     Development charges (timing of development charge revenue for CSO)          (5,090)

     Other/Miscellaneous (investment income,proceeds on sale of surplus properties, 

     NPCA differential)
        10,669 

Actual revenues  $   979,129 
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Statement of Operations (Page 6)
Expenses

Budget to Actual (in thousands) Change

Budget expenses per Financial Statements $929,683 

Significant changes

  Higher expenses in General government (labour relations)                665 

  Lower expenses in Transportation services (savings in personnel costs)            (2,260)

  Lower expenses in Environmental Services (Combined Sewer Overflow/utilities)          (18,240)

  Lower expenses in Social and family services  (lower SAEO benefits/stabilized 

caseloads)
           (5,915)

  Lower expenses in Social housing (provider payments)               (517)

  Higher expenses in Planning and development (grant payments)             4,457 

  Other               (572)

Actual expenses  $     907,301 
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Statement of Financial Position (Page 5)
Employee Future Benefits (Note 4, Page 13) & Landfill Liability (Note 6, Page 19)

(in thousands)
Employee Future 

Benefits
Landfill

Liability  $       104,421  $       61,397 

Reserves  $         34,539  $         8,288 

Funded Status 33% 14%

2018

• These liabilities are unfunded and are only adjusted annually – no 
adjustments are made for quarterly reporting purposes
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Statement of Financial Position (Page 5)
Long-term Liabilities (Note 8, Page 20)

(in thousands) 2018 2017 Change

Long-term liabilities $662,658 $631,922 $     30,736

Less: Debt recoverable from LAMS (305,684) (285,412) (20,272)

Net Region long-term liabilities $356,974 $346,510 $       10,464

• Issued $39.0 million in Regional debt; repaid $26.6 million
• New debt issued for police, roads, health, housing programs, water and 

waste management
• Debt of $48.2 million issued on behalf of the LAM’s; repaid $28.0 million
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Audit Findings Report – Trevor Ferguson

• Audit Findings report included (Appendix 3)

• Unqualified audit opinion

• No 2018 Management letter to Audit 
Committee
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Next Steps
Financial Statement Approval

Consolidated Financial 
Statements

• Approval from Audit Committee

• Final Audit Report to be issued by 
Deloitte

Program Financial 
Statements

• Sent to Audit Committee for 
information in June and 
September

Annual Report

• To be published in May
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Questions?

Beth Brens

Associate Director, Reporting & Analysis

905-980-6000 x 3612

beth.brens@niagararegion.ca
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AC-C 17-2019 
May 6, 2019 

Page 1  
 

Subject: 2018 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 

Report to: Audit Committee 

Report date: Monday, May 6, 2019 
 

Recommendations 

1. That the audited consolidated financial statements of the Regional Municipality of 
Niagara (the “Niagara Region”), including the sinking fund financial statements and 
the trust fund financial statements attached as Appendix 2, for the year ended 
December 31, 2018 BE APPROVED; and  
 

2. That the audit findings report pertaining to the audited consolidated financial 
statement, attached as Appendix 3, of the Niagara Region for the year ended 
December 31, 2018 BE RECEIVED for information.  

Key Facts 

• The purpose of this report is to comply with the Audit Committee terms of reference 

that the Audit Committee satisfy itself, on behalf of the Regional Council, that 

Niagara Region’s annual consolidated financial statements are fairly presented in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and to recommend to 

Council whether the annual financial statements should be approved. 

• The requirement for an annual audit is established in the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 

2001, c.25 paragraphs 294.1 through 296.1.   

• Niagara Region received an unqualified audit opinion and no management letter 

points for the year ended December 31, 2018.  

• Year-end funding surplus results were reported in CSD 21-2019 Year End Results 

and Transfer Report and are consistent with the results reported in the consolidated 

financial statements adjusted for accrual accounting presentation required of Public 

Sector Accounting Standards (PSAS).   A reconciliation of the two presentation 

methodologies is provided in Appendix 1. 

Financial Considerations 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with 
legislation and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles established 
by the Public Sector Accounting Board of Chartered Professional Accountants of 
Canada.  
 
The Niagara Region budget to actual results (funding surplus) are prepared and 
reported on a quarterly basis on (used as a tool to manage funding requirements)) 
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whereas the consolidated financial statements are prepared using PSAS. Appendix 1 
reconciles the surplus per the audited Consolidated Statement of Operations to the 
funding surplus based on the budget approach previously presented and significant 
variances explained in CSD 21-2019.  

A draft copy of the Niagara Region’s consolidated financial statements for the year 
ended December 31, 2018 is attached (Appendix 2). In addition, Deloitte audit findings 
report for the year end December 31, 2018 is also attached (Appendix 3).  

Analysis 

The consolidated financial statements of the Niagara Region, including the sinking fund 
financial statements and the trust fund financial statements, for the year ended 
December 31, 2018 have been audited.   

The Region’s external auditor (Deloitte) has indicated that in their opinion, the 
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects.  The fair 
presentation as of December 31, 2018 includes the consolidated statement of financial 
position,  consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus, consolidated 
changes in net debt, as well as the consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Canadian PSAS.    

The consolidated financials reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and 
accumulated surplus of the reporting entity.  The reporting entity is comprised of all 
organizations, committees and local boards accountable for the administration of their 
financial affairs and resources to the Region and which are owned or controlled by the 
Region.  These entities and organizations include: 

 Niagara Regional Housing 

 Court Services Operations 

 Niagara Regional Police Services 
 

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using PSAS making them 
comparable to other municipalities in Canada.  

During the course of the consolidated financial statement audit, the external auditor 

(Deloitte) makes note of any observed internal control weaknesses and makes 

suggestions for improvements through management letter comments. There are no 

management letter points for the 2018 consolidated financial statement audit. 

 

In June 2010 the Niagara Region issued sinking fund debentures by way of bylaw 76- 
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2010.  The first payment into the sinking fund occurred in June 2011.  The Municipal 
Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c 25 paragraphs 409.6 requires the municipal auditor to certify the 
balance in the sinking fund each year.  

As per Ontario Regulation79/10, section 241.(10) of the Long Term Care Homes Act, 
2007, every licensee of a long-term care home must have each resident trust account 
audited annually.  

In accordance with Canadian Auditing Standards, the consolidated financial statements 
will be dated on the date in which the recognized authority with respect to the financial 
statements has approved the statements.  In the case of the Region, this authority lies 
with Council, and as such, the signed Auditor’s report will be received on the date when 
the statements are approval by Council. Until that approval is received the consolidated 
financial statements are marked draft. 

Upon completion of the 2018 Annual Report, the financial statements will be available to 
the public on the Niagara Region website: 
http://www.niagararegion.ca/business/finance/annual-reports/default.aspx  

Alternatives Reviewed 

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using Public Sector Accounting 
Standards therefore no alternative available. 

Relationship to Council Strategic Priorities 

One of the previous Council’s strategic priorities was Advancing Organizational 
Excellence.  Organization Excellence was achieved through receiving an unqualified 
audit opinion on our Consolidated Financial Statements and by not receiving a 
management letter indicating opportunities for process improvements from Deloitte for 
2018.  

Other Pertinent Reports  

 CSD 21-2019, Corporate Services Committee, March 20, 2019 
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________________________________ 
Prepared by: 
Beth Brens, CPA, CA 
Acting Associate Director, Reporting & 
Analysis 
Enterprise Resource Management 
Services 

________________________________ 
Recommended by: 
Todd Harrison, CPA, CMA 
Commissioner/Treasurer 
Enterprise Resource Management 
Services

 

________________________________ 
Submitted by: 
Ron Tripp, P.Eng. 
Acting Chief Administrative Officer  
 
 
This report was reviewed by Helen Chamberlain, CPA, CA, Director of Financial Management 
and Planning.  

Appendices 

Appendix 1 Annual Surplus Reconciliation 5 
Appendix 2 Draft 2018 Consolidated Financial Statements 6 
Appendix 3 2018 Deloitte Audit Findings Report 51 
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Appendix 1: Annual Surplus Reconciliation

(in thousands)

Approved 

Budget 2018 2017

Based on budget approach

Water & Wastewater surplus -$              2,079$                89$                     

Waste Management surplus -                1,551                  5,682                  

Levy surplus (deficit) -                1,828                  (3,654)                

Operating Surplus based on CSD 21-2019 -                5,458                  2,117                  

PSAS Presentation Adjustments:

Capital

Recognize amortization (82,301)         (82,301)              (85,944)              

Recognize in year capital program revenues 44,722          44,969                35,233                

Recognize capital fund expenditures resulting in operating expenses (9,033)           (9,154)                (9,261)                

Recognize operating fund expenditures resulting in capital assets 1,794            1,794                  9,003                  

Recognize proceeds & loss on disposal of assets (4,232)           (4,232)                (6,998)                

Capital Subtotal (49,050)         (48,924)              (57,967)              

Funded

Remove principal debt repayments 39,665          26,571                28,297                

Remove net transfers to reserves (including interest allocation) 38,662          72,976                73,558                

Recognize interest earned on sinking fund investments -                452                     411                     

Funded Subtotal 78,327          99,998                102,266              

Unfunded

Recognize change in landfill liability 17,794          17,794                1,170                  

Recognize contaminated site liability -                -                      -                      

Recognize power dams liability -                422                     422                     

Recognize change in unfunded employee future benefits liability (2,920)           (2,920)                (345)                    

Unfunded Subtotal 14,874          15,296                1,247                  

Annual surplus per PSAS consolidated financial statements 44,151$        71,828$              47,663$              

A balanced operating budget, developed for the purposes of setting tax rates and user fees, was approved by Council on 

December 7, 2017. The operating surplus presented at the top of the chart represents the actual financial results of the Region 

compared to the operating budget. Since the Region is required to report its annual surplus using Public Sector Accounting 

standards (PSAS), a number of adjustments are required in order for the financial results to conform with PSAS. For example, in 

the operating budget capital projects are recognized when funding is allocated, however in order to conform with PSAS an 

adjustment is required as capital projects should be expensed over time through amortization, rather than immediately. 
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2 
 

THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Regional Municipality of Niagara (the “Region”) are the 

responsibility of the Region’s management and have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting 

Standards.  A summary of the significant accounting policies is described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management’s 

judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future 

periods. 

The Region’s management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets 

are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory 

requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation of the consolidated financial 

statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by management. 

The audit committee meets with management and the external auditors to review the consolidated financial statements and 

discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval of the consolidated financial 

statements. 

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Deloitte LLP, independent external auditors appointed by the 

Region. The accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination and 

their opinion on the Region’s consolidated financial statements.  

 

 

Todd Harrison,  

Commissioner of Enterprise Resource Management Services/Treasurer 

May 6, 2019

AC-C 17-2019 
May 6, 2019 
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Independent Auditor’s Report  

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of  
the Regional Municipality of Niagara  

Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Regional Municipality of Niagara 
(the “Region”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 
2018, and the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net financial assets, and cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Region as at December 31, 2018, and the results of its operations, changes in 
net financial assets, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public 
sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards 
(“Canadian GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Region in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Region’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Region or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Region’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

Deloitte LLP 
25 Corporate Park Drive 
Suite 301 
St. Catharines ON  L2S 3W2 
Canada 
 
Tel: 905-323-6000 
Fax: 905-323-6001 
www.deloitte.ca 
  

Dra
ft
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

● Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

● Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Region’s internal control.  

● Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

● Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Region’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Region to cease to continue as a going concern. 

● Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

● Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Region to express an opinion on the financial statements. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

(To be signed Deloitte LLP) 

 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants  
April __, 2019

Dra
ft
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 2018   2017 

FINANCIAL ASSETS 
  

Cash $ 106,902 $ 143,765 
Investments (note 2) $ 585,420 $ 480,130 
Accounts receivable (note 3) $ 80,713 $ 78,582 
Other current assets $ - - - - 329 $ 212 
Tangible capital assets held for sale $ 756 $ 3,515 

 Debt recoverable from others (note 8)  $ 305,684 $ 285,412 

Total financial assets  $ 1,079,804 $ 991,616 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
  

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 114,195 $ 122,221 
Employee future benefits and post-employment liabilities (note 4) $ 104,421 $ 101,403 
Deferred revenue (note 5) $ 178,320 $ 142,222 
Landfill closure and post-closure liability (note 6) $ 61,397 $ 79,191 

 Long-term liabilities (note 8) $ 662,658 $ 631,922 

Total financial liabilities $ 1,120,991 $ 1,076,959 

Net debt $  (41,187)  $  (85,343) 

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 
  

Tangible capital assets (note 9) $ 1,755,117 $ 1,731,150 
Inventory $ 7,360 $ 7,319 

 Prepaid expenses $ 20,836 $ 17,172 

Total non-financial liabilities $ 1,783,313 $ 1,755,641 

Accumulated surplus (note 10) $ 1,742,126 $ 1,670,298 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS  
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 2018 Budget 2018 Actual 2017 Actual 

 (note 18)   

REVENUES 
   

Taxation and user charges:    
Levies on area municipalities $ 359,806 $ 363,304 $ 350,157 
 User charges $ 214,527 $ 216,641 $ 217,219 

Total taxation and user charges $ 574,333 $ 579,945 $ 567,376 
Government transfers (note 16):    

Government of Canada $ 23,549 $ 24,986 $ 25,915 
Province of Ontario $ 329,447 $ 322,020 $ 294,769 
 Other municipalities $ 514 $ 608 $ 1,967 

Total government transfers $ 353,510 $ 347,614 $ 322,651 
Other:    

Development charges earned $ 18,477 $ 13,387 $ 11,761 
Investment income $ 15,679 $ 16,613 $ 15,993 
Provincial offences $ 6,740 $ 7,336 $ 6,812 
 Miscellaneous $ 5,095 $ 14,234 $ 9,952 

Total other $ 45,991 $ 51,570 $ 44,518 

Total revenues $ 973,834 $ 979,129 $ 934,545 

EXPENSES (Note 17) 
 

  
General government $ 42,842 $ 43,507 $ 42,100 
Protection to persons and property $ 190,067 $ 189,911 $ 185,360 
Transportation services $ 68,323 $ 66,063 $ 63,688 
Environmental services $ 142,020 $ 123,780 $ 143,508 
Health services 9 3 98,915 $ 98,499 $ 92,751 
Social and family services $ 303,891 $ 297,976 $ 279,678 
Social housing 64,612 $ 64,095 $ 67,130 
Planning and development $ 19,013 $ 23,470 $ 12,667 

Total expenses $ 929,683 $ 907,301 $ 886,882 

Annual surplus $ 44,151 $ 71,828 $ 47,663 

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year $ 1,670,298 $ 1,670,298 $ 1,622,635 

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 1,714,449 $ 1,742,126 $ 1,670,298 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 2018 Budget 2018 Actual 2017 Actual 

 (note 18)   

Annual surplus $ 44,151  $ 71,828  $ 47,663 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets $  (104,040) $  (104,039) $  (116,971) 
Contributed tangible capital assets $  (3,615) $  (3,615) $  (428) 
Transfers from tangible capital assets held for sale $  (2,758) $  (2,759) $  (6,792) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets $  82,301 $  82,301 $  85,944 
Loss on sale of tangible capital assets $  1,295 $  1,295 $  2,042 
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets $  2,850 $  2,850 $  5,127 
Change in inventory $  - $  (41) $  (414) 
Change in prepaid expenses $  - $  (3,664) $  (1,670) 

Change in net debt $  20,184 $  44,156  $  14,501 

Net debt, beginning of year $  (85,343) $  (85,343) $  (99,844) 

Net debt, end of year $  (65,159) $  (41,187) $  (85,343) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 2018 2017 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
  

Annual surplus $ 71,828 $ 47,663 
Items not involving cash:   

Amortization of tangible capital assets $ 82,301 $ 85,944 
Loss on sale of tangible capital assets $ 1,295 $ 2,042 
Contributed tangible capital assets $ (3,615) $ (428) 
Change in employee future benefits and post-employment liabilities $ 3,018 $ 339 
Change in landfill closure and post-closure liability $ (17,794) $ (1,170) 

Change in non-cash assets and liabilities:   
Accounts receivable $ (2,131) $ 6,065 
Other current assets $  (117) $  57 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $  (8,026) $  (2,590) 
Deferred revenue $  36,098 $ 29,222  
Inventory $  (41)  $  (414)  
Prepaid expenses $  (3,664)  $  (1,670)  

Net change in cash from operating activities  $ 159,152 $ 165,060 

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES 

  

Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets $ 2,850 $ 5,127 
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets $  (104,039) $  (116,971) 

Net change in cash from capital activities $  (101,189) $  (111,844) 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

  

Proceeds on sale of investments $ 35,135 $ 56,692 
Purchase of investments $  (140,425) $  (98,237) 

Net change in cash from investing activities $  (105,290) $  (41,545) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

  

Proceeds on debt issued and assumed $ 38,999 $ 59,796 
Long-term debt repaid $  (26,759) $  (29,815) 
Increase in sinking fund assets $  (1,776) $  (411) 

Net change in cash from financing activities $ 10,464 $ 29,570 

Net change in cash $  (36,863) $  41,241 

Cash, beginning of year $ 143,765 $ 102,524 

Cash, end of year $ 106,902 $ 143,765 

Cash paid for interest $ 12,993 $ 12,430 
Cash received from interest $ 15,175 $ 15,256 

Investing and financing activities on behalf of others: 
  

Debt issued on behalf of others $ 48,230 $ 50,247 
Repayment made on behalf of others $ 27,956 $ 27,386 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The Regional Municipality of Niagara (the “Region”) is an upper-tier municipality in the Province of Ontario (the 

“Province”), Canada.  The provisions of provincial statutes such as the Municipal Act, Municipal Affairs Act and related 

legislation guide its operations. 

The consolidated financial statements of The Regional Municipality of Niagara are prepared by management in 

accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards (“PSAS”) as recommended by the Public Sector 

Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada (“CPA Canada”).  Significant 

accounting policies adopted by the Region are as follows: 

(a) Basis of consolidation: 

(i)    Consolidated entities: 

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and accumulated surplus 

of the reporting entity.  The reporting entity is comprised of all organizations, committees and local boards 

accountable for the administration of their financial affairs and resources to the Region and which are owned or 

controlled by the Region.  These entities and organizations include: 

Niagara Regional Police Services 

Niagara Regional Housing 

Court Services Operations 

Interdepartmental and inter-organizational transactions and balances between these organizations are eliminated. 

(ii) Trust funds: 

Trust funds and their related operations administered by the Region are not included in these consolidated 

financial statements. 

(b) Basis of accounting: 

The Region follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses.  Revenues are recognized in 

the year in which they are earned and measurable.  Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and 

measurable as a result of receipt of goods or services and/or the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 

 (c) Investments: 

Investments consist of bonds and money market notes and are stated at the lower of cost and market value.  

Gains and losses on investments are recorded when incurred. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(f)  Non-financial assets: 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the provision of 

services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in the ordinary 

course of operations. 

 (i) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition, 

construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value of the tangible capital assets, 

excluding land and landfill sites, are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

Asset Useful Life - Years 

Landfill and land improvements 3 – 50 
Building and building improvements 3 – 60 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment - Vehicles 4 – 20 

- Machinery and equipment 3 – 60 
Water and wastewater infrastructure 25 – 100 
Roads infrastructure - Base 40 

- Bridge and culvert 60 
- Surface 10 

Landfill sites are amortized using the units of production method based upon capacity used during the year. 

One half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal.  Assets under 

construction (work in progress) are not amortized until the asset is in service. 

(ii) Contributions of tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt and also are 

recorded as revenue. 

(iii) Intangible assets: 

Intangible assets and natural resources that have not been purchased are not recognized as assets in the 

consolidated financial statements. 

(iv) Interest capitalization: 

The Region’s tangible capital asset policy does not allow for the capitalization of interest costs associated with the 

acquisition or construction of a tangible capital asset. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(f) Non-financial assets (continued): 

(v) Leases: 

Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property are accounted 

for as capital leases.  All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are 

charged to expenses as incurred. 

(vi) Inventories: 

Inventories held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and replacement cost. 

 (g) Reserves and reserve funds: 

Certain amounts, as approved by Regional Council are set aside in reserves for future operating and capital 

purposes.  Transfers to and/or from reserves are an adjustment to the respective reserve when approved.  

Reserves are presented on the consolidated statement of financial position in accumulated surplus. 

(h) Government transfers: 

Government transfers are recognized as revenue in the consolidated financial statements when the transfer is 

authorized, any eligibility criteria are met and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made, except when and 

to the extent that stipulations by the transferor give rise to an obligation that meet the definition of a liability.  

Government transfers that meet the definition of a liability are recognized as revenue as the liability is 

extinguished. 

 (i) Deferred revenue: 

Deferred revenues represent development charges collected under the Development Charges Act (1997), grants, 

user charges and fees which have been collected but for which the related services have yet to be performed.  

These amounts are recognized as revenues in the fiscal year the services are performed. 

(j) Taxation revenue: 

Property tax revenue is recognized on an accrual basis when the tax is authorized by the passing of the tax levy 

by-law.  Taxes are levied on properties listed on the assessment roll at the time the by-law is passed based on 

approved budget and tax rates.  Supplementary taxation is recognized as additional billings are issued for 

properties that are added to the assessment roll during the year. 

At year end, the Region evaluates the likelihood of having to repay taxes as a result of tax appeals or other 

changes and recognizes the liability if the amount can be reasonable estimated. 

(k) Investment income: 

Investment income earned on surplus current fund, capital fund, reserves and reserve funds (other than 

development charge reserve funds) are reported as revenue in the period earned.  Investment income earned on 

development charge reserve funds is added to the fund balance and forms part of the deferred development 

charges balance. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

 (l) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions 

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 

date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 

period. Significant estimates include assumptions used in estimating provisions for tax write-offs, accrued 

liabilities, landfill closure and post-closure liability, contaminated site liability, certain payroll liabilities and in 

performing actuarial valuations of employee future benefits and post-employment liabilities.  Amounts recorded for 

amortization of tangible capital assets are based on estimates of useful service life.  Actual results could differ 

from these estimates. 

(m) Municipal cost-sharing: 

The Region acts as an intermediary to administer capital projects for the acquisition of assets belonging to local 

area municipalities.  Funding received and expenses incurred relating to the local area municipalities share of 

these projects amounted to $982 (2017 - $4,312) and is not reflected in these consolidated financial statements.  

2. Investments: 

Investments reported on the consolidated statement of financial position at the lower of cost or market have market 

values as follows: 

 2018 2017 
Cost Market Value Cost Market Value 

Investments $ 585,420 $ 594,219 $ 480,130 $ 490,658 

The Region has purchased $5,961 (2017- $5,141) of its own debentures issued on behalf of itself and local area 

municipalities which have not been cancelled.  This investment in own debentures is included in investments on 

the consolidated statement of financial position.  The Region’s share of the gross outstanding amount of these 

debentures is $39,742 (2017 - $917).  Coupon rates for these debentures ranged from 3.10% to 3.95%. 

3. Accounts receivable: 

Accounts receivable are reported net of a valuation allowance of $643 (2017 - $1,128). 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

4. Employee future benefits and post-employment liabilities: 

The Region provides certain employee benefits which will require funding in future periods.  These benefits include 

benefits under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board (“WSIB”) Act, sick leave, life insurance, extended health and 

dental benefits for early retirees. 

 2018 2017 

Workplace Safety & Insurance Board $ 42,407 $ 41,394 
Accumulated Sick Leave $ 13,544 $ 14,149 
Retiree benefits $ 34,909 $ 34,267 
Vacation pay $ 9,587 $ 8,953 
Other post-employment liabilities $ 3,974 $ 2,640 

Total employee future benefits and post-employment liabilities $ 104,421 $ 101,403 

Employee future benefits and post-employment benefits reported on the consolidated statement of financial position by 

entity consist of the following:  

 2018 2017 

Niagara Regional Police Services $ 59,976 $ 57,006 
Niagara Regional Housing $ 1,738 $ 1,390 
Niagara Region $ 42,707 $ 43,007 

Total $ 104,421 $ 101,403 

The Region has established reserve funds to mitigate the future impact of these obligations.  These reserves were 

created under municipal by-law and do not meet the definition of a plan asset under PSAS PS3250 Retirement 

Benefits.  Therefore, for the purposes of these financial statements, the plans are considered unfunded.  These 

reserve funds are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within accumulated surplus.  Reserves 

relating to these liabilities are summarized by entity below: 

 2018 2017 

Niagara Regional Police Services $ 8,902 $ 8,702 
Niagara Regional Housing $ 793 $ 793 
Niagara Region $ 24,845 $ 24,994 

Total (Note 10) $ 34,539 $ 34,489 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

4. Employee future benefits and post-employment liabilities (continued): 

Information about the Region’s benefit plans is as follows: 

2018 

 Niagara  
Regional  

Police 

Niagara 
Regional 
Housing 

Niagara 
Region Total 

Accrued benefit obligation: 
    

Balance, beginning of year $ 59,187 $ 1,779 $ 37,098 $ 98,064 
Current benefit cost $ 5,370 $ 344 $ 2,481 $ 8,195 
Interest $ 1,724 $ 51 $ 826 $ 2,601 
Actuarial loss (gain) $  3,761 $  (1,591) $  11,584 $  13,754 
 Benefits paid $  (5,184) $  (123) $ (2,809)  $ (8,116) 

Balance, end of year 64,858 460 49,180 $ 114,498 

Unamortized actuarial gain (loss) $ (4,882) $ 1,278 $ (6,473) $ (10,077) 

Liability $ 59,976 $ 1,738 $ 42,707 $ 104,421 

 
 

2017 

 Niagara  
Regional  

Police 

Niagara 
Regional 
Housing 

Niagara 
Region Total 

Accrued benefit obligation: 
    

Balance, beginning of year $ 58,125 $ 1,462 $ 36,671 $ 96,259 
Current benefit cost $ 2,865 $ 344 $ 1,966 $ 5,175 
Interest $ 1,774 $ 45 $ 845 $ 2,664 
Actuarial loss (gain) $  1,349 $  35 $  395 $  1,779 
 Benefits paid $  (4,926) $  (107) $ (2,779)  $ (7,813) 

Balance, end of year 59,187 1,779 37,098 $ 98,064 

Unamortized actuarial gain (loss) $ (2,181) $ (389) $ 5,909 $ 3,339 

Liability $57,006 $1,390 $43,007 $101,403 

Included in expenses is $338 (2017 - $313) for amortization of the actuarial gain.  The unamortized actuarial gain is 

amortized over the expected average remaining service life as listed below: 

Accumulated Sick Leave Benefit Plan entitlements 6 - 12 years 

Retiree benefits 16 - 21 years 

The most recent actuarial valuation was completed as at December 31, 2018 with estimates to December 31, 2021. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

4. Employee future benefits and post-employment liabilities (continued): 

Workplace Safety and Insurance Board (“WSIB”) 

With respect to responsibilities under provisions of the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act the Region has elected to 

be treated as a Schedule 2 employer and remits payments to the WSIB as required to fund disability payments.  An 

actuarial estimate of future liabilities of the Region under the provisions of the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act has 

been completed and forms the basis for the estimated liability reported in these financial statements.   

The unamortized actuarial gain on future payments required to WSIB is amortized over the expected period of the 

liability which is 11 years. 

The main actuarial assumptions employed for the valuation are as follows: 

Discount rate 

The obligation of the present value of future liabilities as at December 31, 2018 and the expense for the year ended 

December 31, 2018, were determined using a discount rate of 3.75% (2017 – 2.9%). 

Administration costs 

Administration costs were assumed to be 32% (2017 – 34.3%) of the compensation expense. 

Compensation expense  

Compensation costs include loss of earnings benefits, health care costs and non-economic loss awards, were 

assumed to increase at a rate of 2.0% per annum (2017 – 2.0%). 

Accumulated sick leave 

Under the accumulated sick leave benefit plan, unused sick leave can accumulate and certain employees may become 

entitled to a cash payment when they leave the Region’s employment. 

The main actuarial assumptions employed for the valuation are as follows: 

Discount rate 

The obligation as at December 31, 2018, of the present value of future liabilities and the expense for the year ended 

December 31, 2018, were determined using a discount rate of 3.75% (2017 – 2.9%). 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

4. Employee future benefits and post-employment liabilities (continued): 

Retiree benefits 

The Region pays certain life insurance benefits on behalf of retired employees as well as extended health and dental 

benefits for early retirees to age 65 and Health Care Spending Accounts for certain retirees until the age of 70 or 75 

depending on year of retirement.  The Region recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in which the 

employees rendered the services.   

The unamortized actuarial loss on retiree benefits is amortized over the expected average remaining service life of 10 

years. 

The main actuarial assumptions employed for the valuations are as follows: 

Discount rate 

The obligation as at December 31, 2018, of the present value of future liabilities and the expense for the year ended 

December 31, 2018, were determined using a discount rate of 3.75% (2017 - 3.0%). 

Medical costs 

Medical costs were assumed to increase at the rate of 3.42% (2017 - 6.25%) per year, reducing to 2.75% in 2022 and 

thereafter. 

Dental costs 

Dental costs were assumed to increase at the rate of 2.75% (2017 - 3%) per year. 

Inflation 

Inflation was assumed to be 1.75% (2017 – 2.0%) per year. 

Other pension plans 

The Region makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (“OMERS”), which is a multi-

employer plan.  The plan is a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received 

by the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay.  The Region accounts for its participation in OMERS 

as a defined contribution plan.  The OMERS Plan ended 2018 with a funding deficit of $4.2 billion.  The funded ratio 

has increased to 96% from 94% in 2017.  The funded ratio has increased for the sixth consecutive year. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

4. Employee future benefits and post-employment liabilities (continued): 

Other pension plans (continued) 

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2018 was $30,473 (2017 - $29,459) for current service and is included as an 

expense on the consolidated statement of operations.  Employees’ contribution to OMERS in 2018 were $30,453 

(2017 - $29,459). 

Contributions for employees with a normal retirement age of 65 were being made at rate of 9.0% (2017 – 9.0%) for 

earnings up to the yearly maximum pensionable earnings of $55.90 (2017 - $55.30) and at a rate of 14.6% (2017 – 

14.6%) for earnings greater than the yearly maximum pensionable earnings.  For uniformed police officers with a 

normal retirement age of 60, those rates were 9.2% (2017 - 9.2%) and 15.8% (2017 - 15.8%) respectively. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

5. Deferred revenue: 

In accordance with PSAS, obligatory reserve funds are reported as deferred revenue.  The Region treats development 

charges and gas tax as obligatory reserve funds.  The Region has obligatory reserve funds in the amount of $154,762 

(2017 - $116,321).  These reserve funds are considered obligatory as Provincial and Federal legislation restricts how 

these funds may be used, and under certain circumstances, how these funds may be refunded. 

Amounts related to development charges collected are recognized as revenue when the Region has approved and 

incurred the expenses for the capital works for which the development charges were raised.  These funds have been 

set aside, as required by the Development Charges Act (1997), to defray the cost of growth related capital projects 

associated with new development. 

In 2008, Investing in Ontario approved a total funding of $20,157 for capital infrastructure. Revenue is recognized as 

expenses are incurred. The remaining balance of $10,617 has been set aside for the construction of the South Niagara 

East-West Corridor. This project is planned for 2020 - 2021. 

The deferred revenues, reported on the consolidated statement of financial position, are made up of the following: 

 2018 2017 

Development charges $ 134,530 $ 97,197 
Gas tax $ 20,232 $ 19,124 

Obligatory reserve funds total $ 154,762 $ 116,321 
Investing in Ontario Grant $ 10,617 $ 10,617 
Other deferred revenue $ 12,941 $ 15,284 

Balance, end of year $ 178,320 $ 142,222 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

5. Deferred revenue (continued): 

The continuity of obligatory reserve funds are summarized below: 

Development charges: 

 2018 2017 

Balance, beginning of year $ 97,197 $ 81,591 
Externally restricted inflows $ 48,817 $ 26,521 
Revenue earned $  (13,387) $  (11,761) 
Investment income $ 1,903 $ 846 

Balance, end of year $ 134,530 $ 97,197 

 

Gas tax: 

 2018 2017 

Balance, beginning of year $ 19,124 $ 12,181 
Externally restricted inflows $ 14,416 $ 14,110 
Revenue earned $  (13,630) $  (7,315) 
Investment income $ 323 $ 148 

Balance, end of year $ 20,233 $ 19,124 

6. Landfill closure and post-closure liability: 

The Region owns and monitors 14 landfill sites, two of which are open and operating.  The liability for closure of 

operational sites and post-closure care has been recognized based upon the usage of the site’s capacity during the 

year.  Landfill closure and post-closure care are activities that are expected to occur in perpetuity and requirements 

have been defined in accordance with industry standards and include final covering and landscaping of the landfill, 

pumping of ground water and leachates from the site, and ongoing environmental monitoring, site inspection and 

maintenance. The costs were based upon the 2018 budget and inflation adjusted at a rate of 1.75% per annum (2017 

– 2.0%) until the end of contamination. These costs were then discounted to December 31, 2018 using a discount rate 

of 3.75% (2017 – 3.1%).  Post-closure care is estimated to be required for the contaminating lifespan of landfill sites up 

to 40 years (2017 – 40 years). The liability for closure and post-closure care as at December 31, 2018 is $61,397 

(2017 - $79,191).  Estimated total expenditures for closure and post-closure care are $75,440 (2017 - $101,893).  The 

liability remaining to be recognized is $14,043 (2017 - $22,702).  It is estimated that the life of open landfill sites range 

from 32 to 47 years with an estimated total remaining capacity of 3,473 cubic meters.  
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

7. Contaminated site liability: 

A liability for the remediation of contaminated sites is recognized as the best estimate of the amount required to 

remediate the contaminated sites when the following criteria are met: contamination exceeding an environmental 

standard exists, the Region is either directly responsible or accepts responsibility for the remediation, it is 

expected that the future economic benefit will be given up, and a reasonable estimate of the amount is 

determinable.  If the likelihood of the Region’s obligation to incur these costs is either not determinable, or if an 

amount cannot be reasonably estimated, the costs are disclosed as contingent liabilities in the notes to the 

financial statements. 

As at December 31, 2018 there are no contaminated sites that meet the specified criteria and no liability (2017 - 

$nil) for contaminated sites has been recorded in the consolidated financial statements.  

8. Net long-term liabilities: 

 (a) As well as incurring long-term liabilities for regional purposes, the Region also incurs long-term liabilities on behalf 

of the area municipalities.  The responsibility for raising the amounts required to service this debt lies with the 

respective area municipalities. 

The balance of net long-term liabilities reported on the consolidated statement of financial position is made up of 

the following: 

 2018 2017 

Long-term liabilities incurred by the Region (including capital lease) $ 676,851 $ 644,083 
Less: Sinking fund assets $ (14,193) $ (12,161) 

Long-term debt $ 662,658 $ 631,922 

Debt recoverable from others net of sinking fund assets (long-term 
liabilities incurred by the Region for which other entities have 
assumed responsibility) $ (305,684) $ (285,412) 

Net long-term debt, end of year $ 356,974 $ 346,510 

(b) The long-term liabilities in (a) issued in the name of the Region have been approved by by-law.  The annual 

principal and interest payments required to service these liabilities are within the annual debt repayment limit 

prescribed by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

8. Net long-term liabilities (continued): 

(c) The Region issued sinking fund debentures of $78,079 payable on June 30, 2040 and bearing interest at the rate 

of 5.2% per annum.  The sinking fund debentures are included in long-term liabilities in (a) and include $9,333 

borrowed on behalf of the City of St. Catharines and shown as debt recoverable from others.  The City of St. 

Catharines share of the sinking fund assets have been removed from the debt recoverable from others in (a).  

Annual principal payments into the sinking fund of $1,512 are due June 30 of each year.  These payments are 

reflected as principal repayments in (e).  

(d) The Region is contingently liable for long-term liabilities with respect to debt issued for area municipalities, school 

boards, tile drainage and shoreline property assistance. The total amount outstanding as at December 31, 2018 is 

$305,684 (2017 - $285,412) and is reported on the consolidated statement of financial position as debt 

recoverable from others. 

(e) Principal payments to be funded by the Region, including sinking fund payments and capital lease obligations, 

due in each of the next five years are as follows: 

 2018 

2019 $ 33,936 
2020 $ 27,745 
2021 $ 23,366 
2022 $ 23,061 
2023 $ 22,625 
Thereafter $ 226,241 

Total principal payments $ 356,974 

(f) Total interest on net long-term liabilities which are reported on the consolidated statement of operations amounted 

to $13,212 in 2018 (2017 - $12,740).  The long-term liabilities bear interest at rates ranging from 1.20% to 4.90%.  

The interest on long-term liabilities assumed by the municipalities or by individuals in the case of tile drainage and 

shoreline property assistance loans are not reflected in these consolidated financial statements. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

9. Tangible capital assets: 

2018 

 Land 

Landfill and Land 

Improvements 

Building and 

Building 

Improvements 

Vehicles, 

Machinery and 

Equipment 

Water and 

Wastewater 

Infrastructure 

Roads  

Infrastructure 

Work in 

progress Total 

Cost 

Balance, beginning of year  $ 221,881   $ 98,785   $ 764,034   $ 621,224   $ 364,394   $ 740,512   $ 114,490   $ 2,925,320 

Additions/transfers $ 1,691  $ 2,538  $ 10,617  $ 21,010  $ 13,234  $ 24,453  $  34,111  $ 107,654  

Disposals $  - $  (277) $  (656) $  (14,612) $  (37) $  (5,341) $  -  $  (20,923) 

Balance, end of year $ 223,572  $ 101,046 $ 773,995  $ 627,622  $ 377,591  $ 759,624 $ 148,601  $ 3,012,051  

Accumulated Amortization 

Balance, beginning of year $ 0- $ 50,853  $ 340,825  $ 386,901  $ 93,679  $ 321,912 $ 0- $ 1,194,170  

Disposals $ 0- $  (277) $  (421) $  (14,095) $  (18) $  (4,726) $ 0- $  (19,537) 

Amortization expense $ 0- $ 3,293 $ 23,106  $ 31,014  $ 5,058  $ 19,830  $ 0- $ 82,301  

Balance, end of year $ 0- $ 53,869  $ 363,510  $ 403,820  $ 98,719  $ 337,016  $ 0- $ 1,256,934  

Net Book Value, end of year  $ 223,572   $ 47,177   $ 410,485   $ 223,802   $ 278,872   $ 422,608   $ 148,601   $ 1,755,117  
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

9. Tangible capital assets (continued): 

2017 

 Land 

Landfill and Land 

Improvements 

Building and 

Building 

Improvements 

Vehicles, 

Machinery and 

Equipment 

Water and 

Wastewater 

Infrastructure 

Roads  

Infrastructure 

Work in 

progress Total 

Cost 

Balance, beginning of year  $ 207,504   $ 92,958   $ 742,724   $ 592,332   $ 330,959   $ 729,220   $ 124,929   $ 2,820,626 

Additions/transfers $ 15,677  $ 5,904  $ 21,849  $ 37,724  $ 38,415  $ 11,292  $  (10,439)  $ 120,422  

Disposals $  (1,300) $  (77) $  (539) $  (8,832) $  (4,980) $  - $  -  $  (15,728) 

Balance, end of year $ 221,881  $ 98,785 $ 764,034  $ 621,224  $ 364,394  $ 740,512  $ 114,490  $ 2,925,320  

Accumulated Amortization 

Balance, beginning of year $ 0- $ 47,163  $ 318,705  $ 365,115  $ 72,495  $ 317,076 $ 0- $ 1,120,554  

Disposals $ 0- $  (77) $  (304) $  (7,664) $  (4,303) $  - $ 0- $  (12,328) 

Amortization expense $ 0- $ 3,767  $ 22,424  $ 29,430  $ 25,487 $ 4,836  $ 0- $ 85,944  

Balance, end of year $ 0- $ 50,853  $ 340,825  $ 386,901  $ 93,679 $ 321,912  $ 0- $ 1,194,170  

Net Book Value, end of year  $ 221,881   $ 47,932   $ 423,209   $ 234,323   $ 270,715   $ 418,600   $ 114,490   $ 1,731,150  
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

9. Tangible capital assets (continued): 

(a) Work in progress 

Work in progress having a value of $148,601 (2017 - $114,490) have not been amortized.  Amortization of these 

assets will commence when the asset is put into service. 

 (b) Contributed tangible capital assets 

Contributed capital assets are recognized at fair market value at the date of contribution.  Where an estimate of 

fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset was recognized at a nominal value.  Land is the only 

category where nominal values were assigned.  The value of contributed assets transferred to the Region during 

the year is $3,615 (2017 - $428). 

(c) Works of art and historical treasures 

No works of art or historical treasures are held by the Region. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

10. Accumulated Surplus: 

Accumulated surplus consists of balances as follows: 

 2018 2017 

Surplus:   
Invested in tangible capital assets $ 1,398,144 $ 1,384,640 
Capital fund – unexpended capital financing $ 226,159 $ 189,895 
Operating fund $  (12,686) $  (10,667) 
Unfunded   

  Landfill closure and post-closure liability  (61,397) $  (79,191) 
  Employee future benefits and post-employment liabilities  (103,112) $  (100,234) 

      Total surplus plus $ 1,447,108 $ 1,384,443 

Reserves and reserve funds set aside by Council:   
Ambulance communication $ 37 $ 1,275 
Circle route initiatives $ 1,383 $ 1,383 
Employee benefits $ 34,539 $ 34,489 
Encumbrances $ 19,494 $ 17,531 
General capital levy $ 26,221 $ 24,723 
Niagara Regional Housing $ 10,439 $ 11,780 
Court Services facilities renewal $ 1,650 $ 1,650 
Public liability self-insurance $ 2,270 $ 2,270 
Replacement of equipment $ 224 $ 224 
Smart growth $ 201 $ 451 
Taxpayer relief reserve $ 26,539 $ 24,821 
Waste management operations $ 24,330 $ 27,136 
Wastewater operations $ 46,228 $ 49,130 
Water operations $ 91,930 $ 77,364 
Landfill $ 8,288 $ 5,377 
 Other reserves and reserve funds $ 1,245 $ 6,251 

      Total reserves and reserve funds serves set aside by council $ 295,018 $ 285,855 

Total accumulated surplus $ 1,742,126 $ 1,670,298 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

11. Trust funds: 

Trust funds administered by the Region amounting to $958 (2017 - $924) have not been included in the consolidated 

statement of financial position nor have their operations been included in the consolidated statement of operations.  

The financial position and activities of the trust funds are reported separately in the trust fund financial statements. 

12. Commitments: 

(a) The Region has outstanding contractual obligations of approximately $93,111 (2017 - $76,985) for public works 

projects.  These costs include holdbacks.  The holdbacks related to work completed as of December 31, 2018 

have been accrued.  Regional council has authorized the financing of these obligations. 

(b) The Region is committed to paying principal and interest payments on provincial debentures issued to finance the 

properties transferred to Niagara Regional Housing from Ontario Housing Corporation.  The debentures are 

outstanding in the amount of $8,750 (2017 - $10,429).  Annual payments of $2,159 (2017 - $2,323) have been 

charged to current operations. 

(c) The Region enters into various service contracts and other agreements in the normal course of business, which 

have been approved by the appropriate level of management or by Council but which have not been reported as 

commitments.  

(d) Minimum annual lease payments:   

The Region has commitments under various building, land and equipment lease agreements with minimum 

annual lease payments as follows: 

 2018 

2019 $ 2,038 
2020 $ 1,546 
2021 $ 905 
2022 $ 395 
2023 $ 148 
Thereafter $ 1 , 5 1,356 

 $ 6,388 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

13. Contingent liabilities: 

At December 31, 2018, the Region has been named defendant or co-defendant in a number of outstanding legal 

actions.  No provision has been made for any claims that are expected to be covered by insurance or where the 

consequences are undeterminable.  A provision of $10,935 (2017 - $11,670) has been made for those claims not 

expected to be covered by insurance. 

14. Public liability insurance: 

The Region has undertaken a portion of the risk for public liability as a means of achieving efficient and cost effective 

risk management.  The Region is self-insured for public liability claims up to $1,000 for any individual claim and $1,000 

for any number of claims arising out of a single occurrence.  Outside coverage is in place for claims in excess of these 

amounts up to $20,000 per occurrence for claims incurred prior to November 2013, and $50,000 per occurrence for 

claims incurred after November 2013.  

The Region has a reserve fund for allocated self-insurance claims which as at December 31, 2018 amount to $2,270 

(2017 - $2,270) and is reported on the consolidated statement of financial position under accumulated surplus. An 

amount of $nil (2017- $nil) has been transferred from this reserve fund in the current year. 

Payments charged against operations in the current year amounted to $3,972 (2017 - $11,233).   

15. Self-funded employee benefit plans: 

The Region provides a group health and dental plan for certain employees and has assumed the full liability for 

payment of benefits under this plan. 

Payments charged against operations in the current year amounted to $17,754 (2017 - $17,811). 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

16. Government transfers: 

The government transfers reported on the consolidated statement of operations are: 

 Budget 2018 2017 

Revenue:    

Government of Canada:    
General government $ - $ - $ - 
Transportation services 12,070 $ 12,059 $ 9,571 
Environmental services 2,602 $ 2,602 $ 4,668 
Health services - $ 53 $ 58 
Social and family services 990 $ 2,339 $ 2,632 
 Social housing 7,787 $ 7,787 $ 8,931 
 Planning and development 100 $ 146 $ 55 

Total government of Canada 23,549 $ 24,986 $ 25,915 

Province of Ontario:    

General government 1,937 $ 1,930 $ 1,903 
Protection to persons and property 9,978 $ 10,007 $ 9,176 
Transportation services 1,569 $ 1,558 $ 1,129 
Environmental services 1,127 $ 1,127 $ 1,285 
Health services 61,989 $ 62,419 $ 60,723 
Social and family services 233,599 $ 226,638 $ 209,037 
Social housing 19,248 $ 18,306 $ 11,516 
 Planning and development - - 35 - - - 

Total province of Ontario 329,447 $ 322,020 $ 294,769 

Other municipalities:    

General government 70 $ 200 $ 169 
Protection to persons and property 348 $ 332 $ 367 
Transportation services 576 $ 576 $ 731 
 Environmental services (480) $  (500) $ 0 700 

Total other municipalities 514 $ 608 1,967 

Total revenues $ 353,510 $ 347,614 $ 322,651 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

17. Segmented information: 

Segmented information has been identified based upon functional areas by the Region. 

The functional areas have been separately disclosed in the segmented information as follows: 

(i) General government: 

General government consists of the general management of the Region, including adopting by-laws and policy, 

levying taxes, issuing debentures and providing administrative, technical, facility management, and financial 

services. 

(ii) Protection to persons and property: 

Protection to persons and property is comprised of Police Services and Court Services. The mandate of Police 

Services is to ensure the safety of the lives and property of citizens, preserve peace and good order, prevent 

crimes from occurring, detect offenders and enforce the law.  Court Services is responsible for administering and 

prosecuting Provincial Offences including those committed under the Highway Traffic Act, the Compulsory 

Automobile Insurance Act, the Trespass to Property Act, the Liquor License Act and other provincial legislation, 

municipal by-laws and minor federal offences.  Court Services governs all aspects of the legal prosecution 

process, from serving an offence notice to an accused person to conducting trials including sentencing and 

appeals. 

(iii) Transportation services: 

Transportation services is responsible for the planning, design, operation and maintenance of the roadway 

system, the maintenance of parks and open space, and street lights. 

(iv) Environmental services: 

Environmental services is responsible for the engineering and operation of the water and wastewater systems and 

waste management. Waste management encompasses solid waste collection and disposal and Niagara 

Recycling. 

(v) Health services: 

The Public Health Department offers a range of programs related to health services that includes protection and 

promotion, disease and injury prevention and also oversees the Emergency Services Division (“ESD”) that 

encompasses both Land Ambulance (“Paramedic”) Services and Land Ambulance Communications (“Dispatch”) 

Services. 

(vi) Social and family services: 

The Community Services department is responsible for providing public services that sustains and supports 

individuals, families and communities.  Programs and services are delivered through Senior Services, Children’s 

Services, Social Assistance and Employment Opportunities and Homelessness Services and Community 

Engagement.  
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

17. Segmented information (continued): 

(vii) Social housing: 

Social housing is responsible for providing and advocating for secure, affordable housing in the Region. 

(viii) Planning and development: 

The Planning and Development department provides information to Council and the community through working 

with partners and community groups to support planning initiatives in the region, providing information to residents 

about Region programs and services. The planning and development department also supports the Region 

special initiatives. 

Certain allocation methodologies are employed in the preparation of segmented information.  Taxation and payments-

in-lieu of taxes are allocated to the segments based on the segment’s budgeted net expenses.  User charges and 

other revenue have been allocated to the segments based upon the segment that generated the revenue.  

Government transfers have been allocated to the segment based upon the purpose for which the transfer was made.  

Development charges earned and developer contributions received are allocated to the segment for which the charge 

was collected. 

The accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the 

consolidated financial statements as disclosed in Note 1.
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

17. Segmented information (continued): 

2018 

 

General 

government 

Protection to 

persons and 

property 

Transportation 

services 

Environmental 

services 

Health 

services 

Social and 

family 

services 

Social 

housing 

Planning and 

development Total 

Revenues: 
         

Levies on area municipalities $  328,702  -   - $     34,602     - - - - $ 363,304  

User charges $ 178 $ 8,510  $ 3,937  $ 161,464  $ 386  $ 26,892 $ 14,192  $ 1,083  $ 216,641  

Government transfers $ 2,118  $ 10,339  $ 14,205  $ 3,230  $ 62,473  $ 228,976  $ 26,092  $ 181    $ 347,614 

Development charges earned $ 6  $ 0 33    $ 10,953  $ 1,890  $ 0 249    $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 256    $ 13,387  

Investment income $ 16,234  0 $ -    $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 2    $ 0 -    $ 376  $ 0 -     $ 16,613  

Provincial offenses $ 0 -    $ 7,336  $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 7,336  

Miscellaneous $ 6,579 $ 1,574  $ (1,722)  $ 5,655  $ 1,117 $ 503  $ 455  $ 73  $ 14,234  

Total revenues $ 353,817 $ 27,792  $ 27,373  $ 206,841  $ 64,227  $ 256,371  $ 41,115  $ 1,593  $ 979,129 

Expenses: 
         

Salaries, wages and employee benefits $ 6,084  $ 152,946  $ 13,927  $ 30,084  $ 81,503  $ 107,727  $ 6,451  $ 5,328  $ 404,050  

Operating expenses $ 16,091  $ 17,066  $ 27,287  $ 63,173  $ 13,609  $ 81,667  $ 22,582   $ 2,381  $ 243,856  

External transfers $ 1,229  $ 9,250  $ 2,229  $ 3,390  $ -    $ 104,684  $ 27,336  $ 15,761  $ 163,879  

Debt services $ 13,188  $ 0 -    $ 0 27    $ 0 -  $ 0 -  $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 13,215  

Amortization $ 6,915  $ 10,649  $ 22,593  $ 27,133  $ 3,387  $ 3,898  $ 7,726  $ 0 -    $ 82,301  

Total expenses: $ 43,507  $ 189,911  $ 66,063  $ 123,780  $ 98,499  $ 297,976 $ 64,095  $ 23,470  $ 907,301 

Annual surplus (deficit) $  310,310  $ (162,119) $ (38,690)  $ 83,061  $ (34,272)  $ (41,605) $  (22,980) $  (21,877)  $ 71,828  
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

17. Segmented information (continued): 

 

2017 

 

General 

government 

Protection to 

persons and 

property 

Transportation 

services 

Environmental 

services 

Health 

services 

Social and 

family 

services 

Social 

housing 

Planning and 

development Total 

Revenues: 
         

Levies on area municipalities $  315,266  -   - $     34,891`     - - - - $ 350,157  

User charges $ 259  $ 8,196  $ 4,221  $ 163,343  $ 446  $ 26,314  $ 13,694   $ 746  $ 217,219  

Government transfers $ 2,071  $ 9,543  $ 11,431  $ 6,653  $ 60,781  $ 211,669  $ 20,448  $ 55  $ 322,651 

Development charges earned $ 146  $ 0 2,700    $ 6,141  $ 2,725  $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 0 49    $ 11,761  

Investment income $ 15,673  0 $ -    $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 2    $ 0 -    $ 318  $ 0 -     $ 15,993  

Provincial offenses $ 0 -    $ 6,811  $ 0 -    $ 0 1    $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ -  $ 6,812  

Miscellaneous $ 3,924  $ (4,745)  $ 5,257  $ 4,204  $ 338  $ 663  $ 244   $ 67  $ 9,952  

Total revenues $ 372,230  $ 22,505  $ 27,050  $ 176,926  $ 61,567  $ 238,646  $ 34,704  $ 917  $ 934,545 

Expenses: 
         

Salaries, wages and employee benefits $ 5,624  $ 148,081  $ 14,623  $ 30,267  $ 76,359  $ 102,937  $ 5,998  $ 4,471  $ 388,360  

Operating expenses $ 16,387  $ 17,782  $ 21,255  $ 81,049  $ 13,341  $ 68,268  $ 21,855   $ 1,682  $ 241,619  

External transfers $ 622  $ 9,342  $ 142  $ 5,024  $ 52    $ 104,702  $ 31,811  $ 6,514  $ 158,209  

Debt services $ 12,750  $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 0 -  $ 0 -  $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 0 -    $ 12,750  

Amortization $ 6,717  $ 10,155  $ 27,668  $ 27,168  $ 2,999  $ 3,771  $ 7,466  $ 0 -    $ 85,944  

Total expenses: $ 42,100  $ 185,360  $ 63,688  $ 143,508  $ 92,751  $ 279,678  $ 67,130  $ 12,667  $ 886,882  

Annual surplus (deficit) $  330,131  $ (162,855) $ (36,638)  $ 33,418  $ (31,184)  $ (41,032) $  (32,426) $  (11,750)  $ 47,663  
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

18. Budget data: 

The budget amounts presented in these consolidated financial statements are based upon the 2018 operating and 

capital budgets approved by Council on December 7, 2017.  The chart below reconciles the approved budget to the 

budget amounts reported in these consolidated financial statements.  Budgets established for tangible capital asset 

acquisitions are on a project-oriented basis, the costs of which may be carried out over one or more years.  Where 

amounts were budgeted for on a project-oriented basis, the budget amounts used are based on actual projects that 

took place during the year to reflect the same basis of accounting that was used to report the actual results.  In 

addition, to ensure comparability of expenses, the allocation of program support costs completed for actual reporting 

was also applied to the budget amounts. 

 Budget Amount 

REVENUES 
 

Operating 
 

Approved budget $ 934,235 
Budget Amendments $ 1,160 
Budget Adjustments $ 33,950 
Expenses classified as revenue $ (3,166) 

Capital:  
Development charges $ 12,396 
Grants and subsidies $ 27,510 
Other contributions $ 4,816 
Gain on sale of tangible capital assets $  (1,295) 

Less:  
Transfers from reserves $  (32,835) 
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets $  (2,937) 

Total revenue $ 973,834 

EXPENSES 
 

Operating 
 

Approved budget $ 934,235 
Budget Amendments $ 1,160 
Budget Adjustments $ 33,950 
Expenses classified as revenue $ (3,166) 

Add:  
Capital project cost resulting in operating expenses $ 9,033 
Amortization $ 82,301 
Employee future benefits $ 2,920 
Landfill liability $ (17,794) 

Less:  
Operating expenses resulting in tangible capital assets $  (1,794) 
Transfers to reserves, including capital $  (71,497) 
Debt principal payments $  (39,665) 

Total expenses $ 929,683 

Annual surplus $ 44,151 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

19. Comparative figures: 

Certain prior year figures have been reclassified to conform to the consolidated financial statement presentation 

adopted in the current year.   
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the  
Regional Municipality of Niagara  

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of the Sinking Funds of the Regional Municipality of Niagara 
(the “Region”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the 
statements of operations, change in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (collectively 
referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the sinking funds of the Region as at December 31, 2018, and the results of its 
operations, changes in net financial assets, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards 
(“Canadian GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Region in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Region’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Region or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Region’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

Deloitte LLP 
25 Corporate Park Drive 
Suite 301 
St. Catharines ON  L2S 3W2 
Canada 
 
Tel: 905-323-6000 
Fax: 905-323-6001 
www.deloitte.ca 
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Region’s internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Region’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Region to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Region to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

(To be signed Deloitte LLP) 

 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants  
April __, 2019 Dra
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

SINKING FUND STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 2018 2017 

FINANCIAL ASSETS 
  

Cash $ 169 $ 252 
Interest receivable $ 65 $ 35 
Due from operating fund $ 5 $ 5 

 Investments (note 2) $ 13,960 $ 11,873 

Total financial assets $ 14,199 $ 12,165 

LIABILITIES 
  

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 4 $ 4 
Sinking fund requirements   
   City of St. Catharines $ 1,665 $ 1,431 

    The Regional Municipality of Niagara $ 12,265 $ 10,540 

Total financial liabilities $ 13,934 $ 11,975 

Accumulated surplus and net financial assets $ 265 $ 190 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

SINKING FUND STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGE IN NET 
FINANCIAL ASSETS 

For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 2018 2017 

REVENUES 
  

Contributions $ 1,512 $ 1,512 
Investment Income $ 528 $ 457 

Total revenues $ 2,040 $ 1,969 

EXPENSES 
  

Professional fees and dues $ 7 $ 4 
Provision for sinking fund requirements $ 1,958 $ 1,891 

Total expenses $ 1,965 $ 1,895 

Annual Surplus $ 75 $ 74 

Accumulated surplus and net financial assets, beginning of year $ 190 $ 116 

Accumulated surplus and net financial assets, end of year $ 265 $ 190 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

SINKING FUND STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars)  

 2018 2017 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
  

Annual surplus $ 75 $ 74 
Change in non-cash assets and liabilities:   

Interest receivable $ 3 3 (30)  $ 3 
Due from operating fund $ ( ( - $ 3 

Net change in cash from operating activities $ 45 $ 80 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
  

Purchase of investments $  (2,087)  $  (1,920) 

Net change in cash from investing activities $  (2,087)  $  (1,920) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
  

Increase in sinking fund requirements $ 1,959 $ 1,891 

Net change in cash from financing activities $ 1,959 $ 1,891 

Net change in cash $  (83) $  51 

Cash, beginning of year $ 252 $ 201 

Cash, end of year $ 169 $ 252 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO SINKING FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The financial statements of sinking funds of The Regional Municipality of Niagara (the "Region") are the 

representation of management prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

The sinking fund is a separate fund maintained for the purpose of providing for the repayment of all sinking fund debt 

when it becomes due.  The Region issued sinking fund debentures of $78,079 payable on June 30, 2040 and bearing 

interest at the rate of 5.2% per annum.  Included in the sinking fund debenture is $9,333 borrowed on behalf of the 

City of St. Catharines, representing a proportionate share of 11.95%.  Annual interest payments on the sinking fund 

debt are $4,060.  

Significant accounting policies adopted by the Region for the sinking funds are as follows: 

(a) Basis of accounting: 

The Region's sinking fund follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses. 

(b) Sinking fund requirements: 

The requirements of the sinking fund represent the amounts required which, together with interest compounded 

annually, will be sufficient to retire the related debentures at maturity.  The requirements were calculated using a 

rate of 3.5% per annum. 

(d) Investment income: 

Investment income is reported as revenue in the period earned. 

2. Investments: 

The investments consist of municipal bonds and are carried at cost.  At December 31, 2018 the investments have a 

market value of $14,254 (2017 - $12,856).
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Independent Auditor’s Report  

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of 
the Regional Municipality of Niagara  

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of the trust funds of the Regional Municipality of Niagara 
(the “Region”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the 
statements of financial activities and change in fund balance and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
(collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the trust funds of the Region as at December 31, 2018, and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting 
standards for not-for-profit organizations. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards 
(“Canadian GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Region in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Region’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Region or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Region’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

Deloitte LLP 
25 Corporate Park Drive 
Suite 301 
St. Catharines ON  L2S 3W2 
Canada 
 
Tel: 905-323-6000 
Fax: 905-323-6001 
www.deloitte.ca 
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Region’s internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Region’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Region to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Region to express an opinion on the financial statements. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

(To be signed Deloitte LLP) 

 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants  
April __, 2019 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

TRUST FUNDS STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
 For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 2018 2017 

ASSETS 
  

Cash $ 249 $ 274 
 Due from Regional Municipality of Niagara $ 709 $ 650 

Fund balance $ 958 $ 924 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

TRUST FUNDS STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE 
IN FUND BALANCE 
 For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 2018 2017 

REVENUE 
  

Deposits from residents $ 492 $ 487 
 Donations $ 227 $ 183 

Total revenue $ 719 $ 670 

EXPENSES 
  

 Expenditures for the benefit of residents $ 685 $ 790 

Total expenses $ 685 $ 790 

Excess of revenues over expenses / (expenses over revenues)  $ 34 $ (120) 
Fund balance, beginning of year $ 924 $ 1,044 

Fund balance, end of year $ 958 $ 924 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

TRUST FUNDS STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 2018 2017 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
  

Excess of  revenues over expenses / (expenses over revenues)  $  34 $ (120) 

Change in non-cash assets and liabilities   

Due from Regional Municipality of Niagara $ (59) $  (630) 

Net change in cash from operating activities $ (25) $  (750) 

Cash, beginning of year $ 274 $ 1,024 

Cash, end of year $  249 $ 274 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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THE REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF NIAGARA 

NOTES TO TRUST FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 For the year ended December 31, 2018 (In thousands of dollars) 

 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

These financial statements reflect the financial position, financial operations, and cash flows of funds held in trust by 
The Regional Municipality of Niagara (“the Region”) for residents of the eight long-term care homes: 

 Gilmore Lodge 

 Upper Canada Lodge 

 Deer Park Villa 

 Woodlands of Sunset 

 Linhaven 

 Rapelje Lodge 

 Northland Point 

 Meadows of Dorchester  
 
These financial statements are the representation of management and are prepared by management in accordance 
with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and reflect the following policies:   

(a) Basis of Accounting: 

  Revenues are recorded in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the revenue. 

Expenses are recorded in the period the goods and services are acquired and a liability is incurred, or transfers 

are due. 

(b) Uses of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit 

organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 

assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 

the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the period.  Actual results could differ from these 

estimates. 
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Dear Audit Committee Members, 

We are pleased to submit this report on the results of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Regional Municipality of Niagara (the 
“Region”) for the 2018 fiscal year. This report summarizes the scope of our audit, our findings and reviews certain other matters that we believe to 
be of interest to you.  

As agreed in our Master Services Agreement dated November 8, 2016, and the confirmation of changes letter dated January 30, 2019, we have 
performed audits of the following, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (“Canadian GAAS”): 

• Consolidated financial statements of the Region as at, and for the year ended, December 31, 2018, prepared in accordance with Canadian Public 
Sector Accounting Standards (“PSAS”); 

• Financial statements of Niagara Regional Housing (“NRH”) as at, and for the year ended, December 31, 2018; 

• Financial statements of the Regional Municipality of Niagara Trust Funds (the “Trust Funds”) as at, and for the year ended, December 31, 2018; 

• Financial statements of the Regional Municipality of Niagara Sinking Funds (the “Sinking Funds”) as at, and for the year ended, December 31, 
2018; and 

• Various agencies, boards, commissions and programs (the “Programs”) as at, and for the year ended, December 31, 2018. 
 

Herein after, collectively referred to as the “Financial Statements”. 

We expect to issue our Independent Auditor’s Reports on the financial statements of the Region, the Trust Funds, and the Sinking Funds upon 
approval of the financial statements and completion of the outstanding matters noted in this report.  

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the audit plan dated August 13, 2018. 

 

Deloitte LLP 
Bay Adelaide East 
8 Adelaide Street West 
Suite 200 
Toronto ON  M5H 0A9 
Canada 
 
Tel: 416-601-6150 
Fax: 416-601-6151 
www.deloitte.ca  March 29, 2019 

 
Private and confidential 
 
Members of the Audit Committee
Regional Municipality of Niagara 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way
Thorold ON  L2V 4T7 
 
Re: Report on audited annual financial statements 
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Regional Municipality of Niagara 
March 29, 2019 
Page 2 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Regional Council through the Audit Committee, management and others within the 
Region, and is not intended to, and should not, be used by anyone other than these specified parties. Accordingly, we disclaim any responsibility to 
any other party who may rely on it. 

We would like to express our appreciation for the cooperation we received from management and the employees of the Region with whom we 
worked to discharge our responsibilities. We look forward to discussing this report summarizing the outcome of our audit with you and answering 
any questions you may have. 

Yours truly, 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 

Original signed by Deloitte LLP
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This report summarizes the main findings arising from our audits. 

Audit scope and terms of engagement 
We have been asked to perform audits of the financial statements of the Region, NRH, the 
Trust Funds, and Sinking Funds, and to perform various audits on the Programs 
(collectively, the “Region”) prepared in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting 
Standards (“PSAS”) as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018. Our audit was 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (“Canadian 
GAAS”). 
The terms and conditions of our engagement are described in the Master Services 
Agreement dated November 8, 2016, and the confirmation of changes letter dated January 
30, 2019, which was signed on behalf of the Committee and management. 

Audit risks 
Through our risk assessment process, we have identified 
the audit risks. These risks of material misstatement and 
related audit responses are discussed in the Audit Risks 
section of this report. 

Materiality 
We are responsible for providing reasonable assurance that your financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. 
Materiality levels were determined on the basis of total revenues. 
We have informed the Committee of all uncorrected misstatements greater than a clearly trivial amount of 5% of materiality and any misstatements 
that are, in our judgment, qualitatively material. In accordance with Canadian GAAS, we asked that any misstatements be corrected. 

Our audit explained 

Scope and terms of engagement Materiality Audit risks
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Status and outstanding matters 
We expect to be in a position to render our audit opinions on the financial 
statements of the Region, the Trust Funds and the Sinking Funds 
following their approval, and the completion of the following outstanding 
procedures: 

Receipt of signed management representations letter; 
Receipt of outstanding legal responses; and 
Update of our subsequent events procedures 

Misstatements 
In accordance with Canadian GAAS, we request that all misstatements be 
corrected. There were no corrected or uncorrected misstatements aggregated 
by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period 
presented. 

Going concern 
Management has completed its assessment of the 
ability of the Region to continue as a going concern 
and in making its assessment did not identify any 
material uncertainties related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the 
Region's ability to continue as a going concern. We 
agree with management’s assessment. 

Business insights 
During the course of our audit, we 
examined the accounting procedures and 
internal controls employed by the Region. 
We did not identify any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that existed 
as of December 31, 2018. 

Uncorrected disclosure misstatements 
In accordance with Canadian GAAS, we request 
that all disclosure misstatements be corrected. 
There are no disclosure misstatements aggregated 
by us during the current engagement and 
pertaining to the latest period presented to report. 

Status and 
outstanding matters Going concern Business insights Misstatements

Uncorrected 
disclosure 

misstatements
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Fraud risk 
A summary of the results of our audit procedures designed to address 
the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements relating to 
fraud is provided in the Audit risks section of this report. 
Based on the audit evidence obtained, our assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement due to fraud remain appropriate. 

Independence 
We have developed appropriate safeguards and procedures to eliminate 
threats to our independence or to reduce them to an acceptable level. We 
confirm that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence. 

Significant accounting practices, judgments and estimates 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements 
prepared by management and are based on management’s current 
judgments. These judgments are normally based on knowledge and 
experience about past and current events, assumptions about future 
events and interpretations of the financial reporting standards. 
During the year ended December 31, 2018, management advised us 
that there were no significant changes in accounting estimates or in 
judgments relating to the application of the accounting policies. 

Conclusion 
In accordance with Canadian GAAS, our audit was designed to enable us to 
express an opinion on the fairness of the presentation of the financial 
statements prepared in accordance with PSAS. 
No restrictions have been placed on the scope of our audit. In performing 
the audit, we were given full and complete access to the accounting 
records, supporting documentation and other information requested. 
We intend to issue an unmodified audit report on the financial statements 
of the Region for the year ended December 31, 2018 once the outstanding 
items referred to above are completed satisfactorily and the financial 
statements are approved. 

Fraud risk
Significant accounting 

practices, judgments and 
estimates

Independence Conclusion
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The areas of audit risk identified as part of our risk assessment, together with our responses and conclusions, are described below.

Region of Niagara 
Revenue and deferred revenue amounts* 

Audit risk Our audit response Audit results 

Canadian Auditing Standards include the 
presumption of a fraud risk involving improper 
revenue recognition.  

Substantive testing to determine if restricted contributions 
(i.e., development charges, conditional grants, etc.) have 
been recognized as revenue in the appropriate period. 

No significant issues were noted as 
a result of this testing. 

Year-end cut-off 

Audit risk Our audit response Audit results 

Determine if cut-off of revenues and expenses is 
appropriate. 

Substantive testing on accounts payable, accrued liabilities, 
deferred revenue and accounts receivable, and 
Test disbursements subsequent to year-end.

No significant issues were noted as 
a result of this testing. 

Adoption of new accounting standards 

Audit risk Our audit response Audit results 

Determine if balances and disclosures are 
appropriate and in accordance with newly 
adopted Public Sector Accounting Standards. 

• Review management’s process of identifying related
parties, and review management’s analysis of related party
transactions and balances and determine if they are
recorded in accordance with PS 2200

• Determine if Assets are properly recorded and disclosed in
accordance with PS 3210

• Review management’s process of identifying contingent
assets and contractual rights and determine if they are
properly disclosed in accordance with PS 3320 and PS
3380.

No significant issues were noted as 
a result of this testing. 

Audit risks 
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Tangible capital assets 

Risk identified Our audit response Audit results 

Appropriate accounting and disclosure. Test assumptions used in determining completeness, 
valuation, recording and cut-off of additions and disposals, 
and 
Testing of calculations of amortization. 

No significant issues were noted as 
a result of this testing. 

Year-end accruals and other estimates (including salaries, employee future benefits, landfill closure and post-closure liability, 
contaminated sites and allowance for doubtful accounts) 

Risk identified Our audit response Audit results 

Estimates require management judgments and 
assumptions. 

Obtain documentation on management’s control over 
accounting estimates and assess risk; 
Review and assess the consistency of major assumptions 
used to develop significant accounting estimates; 
Compare actual historical experience to models employed 
in such calculations’ 
Obtain calculations from experts for accruals such as 
employee future benefit liability and landfill liability, and 
assess assumptions and data used to prepare the report; 
and 
Review actual outcome of prior year estimates. 

No significant issues were noted as 
a result of this testing. 
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Management override of controls* 

Audit risk Our audit response Audit results 

Management override of controls is a presumed 
area of risk in a financial statement audit due to 
management’s ability to override controls that 
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

Our audit tests the appropriateness of journal entries 
recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made 
in the preparation of financial statements; 
We obtained an understanding of the business rationale for 
significant transactions that we become aware of that are 
outside of the normal course of business, or that otherwise 
appear to be unusual given our understanding of the 
Region and its environment; 
We reviewed accounting estimates for bias and evaluate 
whether the circumstances producing the bias, if any, 
represent a risk of material misstatement; 

• In addition, experienced Deloitte personnel were assigned
to the testing and review of journal entries and areas of
estimates; and

• Professional skepticism was maintained throughout the
audit.

Management has represented to us 
that they have not identified any 
fraud or illegal items and our audit 
procedures support this assessment. 

Niagara Regional Housing 
Tenant and other receivables/revenue* 

Audit risk Our audit response Audit results 

Canadian Auditing Standards include the 
presumption of a fraud risk involving improper 
revenue recognition. Valuation of tenant and 
other receivables. 

• Review aging reports and estimate allowance for doubtful
tenant receivables for reasonableness;

• Confirm subsidies received from the Service Manager; and
• Perform detail testing of tenant and other receivables and

related revenue.

No significant issues were noted as 
a result of this testing. 

Long-term debt 

Audit risk Our audit response Audit results 

Appropriate accounting and disclosure. • Confirm long-term debt balances; and
• Recalculate interest.

No significant issues were noted as 
a result of this testing. 

*These areas have been identified as areas of significant risk.
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The accounting policies of the Region are set out in Note 1 of the financial statements. 

In the course of our audit of the financial statements, we considered the qualitative aspects of the financial reporting process, including items that 
have a significant impact on the relevance, reliability, comparability and understandability of the information included in the financial statements. 

Significant accounting policies 
During the year ended December 31, 2018 the Region adopted the following new accounting standards: 

• PS 2200 Related parties
• PS 3420 Inter-entity transactions
• PS 3210 Assets
• PS 3320 Contingent assets
• PS 3380 Contractual rights

There was no impact to the Region’s financial statements as a result of the adoption of these standards. 

Management judgment and accounting estimates 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on management’s current judgments. 
These judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past and current events, assumptions about future events and 
interpretations of the financial reporting standards. 

During the year ended December 31, 2018, management advised us that there were no significant changes in accounting estimates or in judgments 
relating to the application of the accounting policies. 

Significant accounting practices, judgments 
and estimates 
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The following summarizes the status and findings of key aspects of our audit. In the appendices to this report, we have provided additional 
information related to certain matters we committed to report to the Committee as part of the audit plan. 

Comment 

Changes to the audit plan The audit was conducted in accordance with our audit plan, which was communicated to the Committee. We 
confirm that there have been no amendments to the audit scope and approach communicated in the audit plan. 

Significant difficulties encountered 
in performing the audit 

We did not encounter any significant difficulties while performing the audit. There was not an unnecessarily brief 
timetable in which to complete the audit. 

Related party transactions Related party transactions or balances have been properly disclosed in the financial statements. 
We have not identified any related party transactions that were not in the normal course of operations and that 
involved significant judgments by management concerning measurement or disclosure. 

Disagreements with management During the course of our audit, there were no disagreements with management about matters that individually or 
in the aggregate could be significant to the financial statements. 

Consultation with other accountants Management has informed us that the Region has not consulted with other accountants about auditing or 
accounting matters. 

Legal and regulatory compliance Our limited procedures did not identify any areas of material non-compliance with laws and regulations by the 
Region. 

Post-balance sheet events At the date of finalizing this report, we are not aware of any significant post balance sheet events. 

Other reportable matters 
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The table below summarizes our communication requirements under Canadian GAAS and other communications that we believe would help us 
achieve an effective audit. We confirm that all required communications have been reported in our audit service plan and year end communication. 

Required communication Reference 

Audit service plan 

1. Our responsibilities under Canadian GAAS, including forming and expressing an opinion on the financial
statements

Master services agreement dated 
November 8, 2016,and the 
confirmation of changes letter 
dated January 30, 2019 

2. An overview of the overall audit strategy, addressing:
a. Timing of the audit
b. Significant risks, including fraud risks, and
c. Nature and extent of specialized skill or knowledge needed to perform the planned audit procedures

related to significant risk.
d. Names, locations, and planned responsibilities of other independent public accounting firms or others

that perform audit procedures in the audit.

Audit service plan dated August 13, 
2018 

3. Significant transactions outside of the normal course of business, including related party transactions None noted 

Year end communication 

4. How those charged with governance exercise oversight over management’s process for identifying and
responding to the risk of fraud and the internal control that management has established to mitigate these
risks

No issues noted 

5. Fraud or possible fraud identified through the audit process None noted 

6. Whether the Region is in compliance with laws and regulations No issues noted 

7. Significant accounting policies, practices, unusual transactions, and our related conclusions Significant accounting practices, 
judgments and estimates section 

Appendix 1 – Communication requirements 
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Required communication Reference 

8. Alternative treatments for accounting policies and practices that have been discussed with management
during the current audit period

Significant accounting practices, 
judgments and estimates section 

9. Matters related to going concern Page 2 of this report 

10. Management judgments and accounting estimates Significant accounting practices, 
judgments and estimates section 

11. Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit Other reportable matters section 

12. Material written communications between management and us, including management representation
letters

Master services agreement dated 
November 8, 2016, confirmation of 
changes letter dated January 30, 
2019, audit service plan dated 
August 13, 2018, and Management 
representation letter – Appendix 3  

13. Other matters that are significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process None 

14. Modifications to our opinion None 

15. Our views of significant accounting or auditing matters for which management consulted with other
accountants and about which we have concerns

None 

16. Significant matters discussed with management None 

17. Illegal or possibly illegal acts that come to our attention None noted 

18. Significant deficiencies in internal control, if any, identified by us in the conduct of the audit of the financial
statements

None noted. 

19. Uncorrected misstatements and disclosure items None noted 

20. Any significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Region’s related parties None noted 
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March 29, 2019 

Private and confidential 

The Members of the Audit Committee 
Regional Municipality of Niagara 
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way 
Thorold ON  L2V 4T7 

Dear Audit Committee Members, 

We have been engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Regional Municipality of Niagara (the “Region”) for the year ended 
December 31, 2018. 

You have requested that we communicate in writing with you regarding our compliance with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence 
as well as all relationships and other matters between the Region, our Firm and network firms that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence. You have also requested us to communicate the related safeguards that have been applied to eliminate 
identified threats to independence or reduce them to an acceptable level. 

In determining which relationships to report, we have considered relevant rules and related interpretations prescribed by the appropriate provincial 
regulator/ordre and applicable legislation, covering such matters as: 

a. Holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client

b. Holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert significant influence over the financial or accounting
policies of a client

c. Personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client

d. Economic dependence on a client, and

e. Provision of services in addition to the audit engagement.

We confirm to you that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, the firm and, when applicable, network firms have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. 

Appendix 2 – Independence letter 
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We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding independence matters arising since our appointment as 
your auditors. 

We are not aware of any relationships between the Deloitte entities (defined as the Member Firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and their 
respective affiliates) and the Region, its affiliates, or persons in financial reporting oversight roles at the Region and its affiliates, that, in our 
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on independence, that have occurred from April 20, 2018 to March 29, 2019. 

We hereby confirm that we are independent with respect to the Region in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Chartered 
Professional Accountants of Ontario as of March 29, 2019. 

This letter is intended solely for the use of the Committee, management, and others within the Region. 

Yours truly, 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 

Original signed by Deloitte LLP
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[Region letterhead] 

May 16, 2019 

Private and confidential 

Deloitte LLP 
25 Corporate Park Drive 
3rd Floor 
St. Catharines, ON L2S 3W2 
 
Dear Mr. Trevor Ferguson: 

Subject: Consolidated financial statements of the Regional Municipality of Niagara for the year ended December 31, 2018 

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit by Deloitte LLP (“Deloitte” or “you”) of the consolidated financial statements of the 
Regional Municipality of Niagara (the “Region” or “we” or “us”)for the year ended December 31, 2018, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (the “Financial Statements”) for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Financial 
Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the Region in accordance with Public 
Sector Accounting Standards (“PSAS”). 

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately 
informing ourselves: 

Financial statements 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities as set out in the terms of the Master Services Agreement between the Region and Deloitte dated November 
8, 2016 and amended January 30, 2019 for the preparation of the Financial Statements in accordance with PSAS. In particular, the Financial 
Statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, and present the financial position of the Region as at December 31, 2018 and the 
results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with PSAS.   
 

Appendix 3 – Draft management 
representation letter 
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2. Significant assumptions used in making estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

In preparing the Financial Statements in accordance with PSAS, management makes judgments and assumptions about the future and uses 

estimates. The completeness and appropriateness of the disclosures related to estimates are in accordance with PSAS. The Region has 

appropriately disclosed in the Financial Statements the nature of measurement uncertainties that are material, including all estimates where it 

is reasonably possible that the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material to the Financial Statements. 

The measurement methods, including the related assumptions and models, used in determining the estimates, including fair value, were 

appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied in accordance with PSAS and appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry out 

specific courses of action on behalf of the entity. No events have occurred subsequent to December 31, 2018 that require adjustment to the 

estimates and disclosures included in the Financial Statements.

There are no changes in management’s method of determining significant estimates in the current year.

3. The Region has identified all related parties in accordance with Section PS 2200, Related Party Disclosures (“PS 2200”). Management has made 
the appropriate disclosures with respect to its related party transactions in accordance with PS 2200

4. We have determined that the Financial Statements are complete as of date of this letter as this is the date when there are no changes to the 
Financial Statements (including disclosures) planned or expected. The Financial Statements have been approved in accordance with our process 
to finalize financial statements.

5. We have completed our review of events after December 31, 2018 and up to the date of this letter. All events subsequent to the date of the 
Financial Statements and for which PSAS requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. Accounting estimates and 
disclosures included in the Financial Statements that are impacted by subsequent events have been appropriately adjusted.

6. The Financial Statements are free of material errors and omissions.

Internal Controls 
7. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error.

8. We have disclosed to you all known deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting identified as part of our
evaluation, including separately disclosing to you all such deficiencies that we believe to be significant deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting.

Information provided 
9. We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the Financial Statements, such as records,
documentation and other matters.

b. All relevant information as well as additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and,
c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.
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10. All transactions have been properly recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the Financial Statements. 
 

11. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the Financial Statements may be materially misstated as a result of 
fraud.  

 
12. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the entity and involves: 

a. Management; 
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the Financial Statements. 

 
13. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of actual, suspected or alleged fraud, or illegal or suspected illegal acts 

affecting the Region. 
 

14. We have disclosed to you all communications from regulatory agencies concerning non-compliance with or deficiencies financial reporting 
practices and all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered 
when preparing the Financial Statements. 
 

15. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are 
aware, including guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration.  
 

16. We have disclosed to you all known, actual or possible litigation and claims, whether or not they have been discussed with our lawyers, whose 
effects should be considered when preparing the Financial Statements. As appropriate, these items have been disclosed and accounted for in the 
Financial Statements in accordance with PSAS. 
 

Independence matters 
For purposes of the following paragraphs, “Deloitte” shall mean Deloitte LLP and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, including related member firms 
and affiliates.  
17. Prior to the Region having any substantive employment conversations with a former or current Deloitte engagement team member, the Region 

has held discussions with Deloitte and obtained approval from the Audit Committee. 
 

18. We have ensured that all services performed by Deloitte with respect to this engagement have been pre-approved by the Audit Committee in 
accordance with its established approval policies and procedures. 

 
Other matters 
19. The Region has satisfactory title to and control over all assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets. We have disclosed to you 

and in the Financial Statements all assets that have been pledged as collateral. 
 

20. We have disclosed to you all liabilities, provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets, including those associated with guarantees, 
whether written or oral, and they are appropriately reflected in the Financial Statements. 
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21. We have disclosed to you, and the Region has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the 
Financial Statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt. 

 
22. We have disclosed to you all the documents that we expect to issue that may comprise other information, in the context of CAS 720, The 

Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements. 

Selection of accounting policies and recording of transactions 
23. The Region’s accounting policies and their method of application have been applied on a basis consistent with that of the audited consolidated 

financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018. 
 

Work of management’s experts 
24. We agree with the work of management’s experts in evaluating the landfill liability and employee future benefits liability, and have adequately 

considered the competence and capabilities of the experts in determining amounts and disclosures used in the Financial Statements and 
underlying accounting records. We did not give any, nor cause any, instructions to be given to management’s experts with respect to values or 
amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not aware of any matters that have impacted the independence or objectivity of 
the experts. 

Plans or intentions affecting carrying value/classification of assets and liabilities 
25. We have disclosed to you all plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets and liabilities reflected in 

the Financial Statements.  

Loans and receivables 
26. The Region is responsible for determining and maintaining the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful notes, loans, and accounts receivable, as 

well as estimates used to determine such amounts. Management believes the allowances are adequate to absorb currently estimated bad debts 
in the account balances. 

 
27. We have identified to you all forgivable loans and loans with concessionary terms and have appropriately reflected these instruments in the 

financial statements. 
 

Investments 
28. With regard to the Region’s investments, we have disclosed to you any events that have occurred and facts that have been discovered with 

respect to such investment that would indicate any other than temporary impairment of the investment’s value. 

Employee future benefits 
29. Employee future benefit costs, assets, and obligations have been properly recorded and adequately disclosed in the Financial Statements 

including those arising under defined benefit and defined contribution plans as well as termination arrangements. We believe that the actuarial 
assumptions and methods used to measure defined benefit plan assets, liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate in 
the circumstances. 
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30. We have disclosed to you any intentions of terminating any of our pension plans or withdrawing from the multi-employer plan, or taking any 
other action that could result in an effective termination or reportable event for any of the plans. We have disclosed to you any occurrences that 
could result in the termination of any of our pension or multi-employer plans to which we contribute. 

 
31. We are unable to determine the possibility of a withdrawal liability in a multi-employer benefit plan. 

 
32. We do not plan to make frequent amendments to our pension or other post-retirement benefit plans. 

Liabilities for contaminated sites 
33. We have evaluated all of our tangible capital assets that we own or accept responsibility, and have not identified any sites in which 

contamination exceeds an environmental standard.  

Various matters 
34. The following have been properly recorded and, when appropriate, adequately disclosed and presented in the Financial Statements: 

a. Economic dependence on another party  

b. Losses arising from sale and purchase commitments  

c. Agreements to buy back assets previously sold  

d. Provisions for future removal and site restoration costs  

e. Financial instruments with significant individual or group concentration of credit risk, and related maximum credit risk exposure  

f. Sales with recourse provisions  

g. Sales incentives, including cash consideration provided to customers and vendor rebates  

h. Arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other arrangements involving restriction on cash balances and 
line-of-credit or similar arrangements 

i. All impaired loans receivable  

j. Loans that have been restructured to provide a reduction or deferral of interest or principal payments because of borrower financial 
difficulties. 
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Yours truly, 

Regional Municipality of Niagara 

Ron Tripp  
Chief Administrative Officer 

Todd Harrison
Commissioner of Enterprise Recourse Management Services 
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At Deloitte, we are devoted to excellence in the provision of professional services and advice, always focused on client service. We have developed a 
series of resources, which contain relevant and timely information.  

 Canada’s Best Managed 
Companies 
(www.bestmanagedcompanies.ca) 

 Directors 
 CEO/CFO 

The Canada's Best Managed Companies designation symbolizes Canadian corporate 
success: companies focused on their core vision, creating stakeholder value and 
excelling in the global economy. 

Centre for financial reporting
(www.cfr.deloitte.ca) 

Directors
 CEO/CFO 
 Controller 
 Financial reporting team 

Web site designed by Deloitte to provide the most comprehensive information on 
the web about financial reporting frameworks used in Canada. 

 Financial Reporting Insights 
(www.iasplus.com/fri) 

 CFO 
 Controller 
 Financial reporting team  

Monthly electronic communications that helps you to stay on top of standard-
setting initiatives impacting financial reporting in Canada. 

 On the board's agenda  Directors 
 CEO/CFO 

Bi-monthly publication examining a key topic in detail, including the perspectives 
of a Deloitte professional with deep expertise in the subject matter as well as the 
views of an experienced external director. 

 State of change 
(www.iasplus.com/StateOfChange) 

 CFO 
 VP Finance 
 Controller 
 Financial reporting team  

Bi-monthly newsletter providing insights into key trends, developments, issues and 
challenges facing the not-for-profit sector in Canada, with a Deloitte point of view. 

 Deloitte Financial Reporting 
Update 
(www.deloitte.com/ca/update) 

 CFO 
 VP Finance 
 Controller 
 Financial reporting team  

Learning webcasts offered throughout the year featuring our professionals 
discussing critical issues that affect your business.  
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www.deloitte.ca 
Deloitte, one of Canada's leading professional services firms, provides 
audit, tax, consulting, and financial advisory services. Deloitte LLP, an 
Ontario limited liability partnership, is the Canadian member firm of 
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited.  
 
Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a 
UK private company limited by guarantee, and its network of member 
firms, each of which is a legally separate and independent entity. Please 
see www.deloitte.com/about for a detailed description of the legal 
structure of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and its member firms. 
 
© Deloitte LLP and affiliated entities. 
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Page 1  
 

Subject: Q2 2019 Follow-up Status of Internal Audit Recommendations 

Report to: Audit Committee 

Report date: Monday, May 6, 2019 
 

Recommendations 

That report AC-C 14-2019 regarding the current status of audit recommendations BE 
RECEIVED. 

Key Facts 

 The purpose of this report is to provide Audit Committee with a status update on the 
degree of implementation of audit recommendations made since 2015.  

 This report will cover all audits completed and issued up to the previous Audit 
Committee meeting, March 18, 2019. 

 As part of the annual audit business cycle, the follow up process will be completed 
and reported to Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. 

 A total of 28 audit recommendations were detailed in this audit report. 

 Between 2017 and 2018, Internal Control and Organizational Performance (ICOP) 
has completed 16 internal audit reports. 

Financial Considerations 

There are no immediate budgetary considerations associated with this report. The audit 
recommendations and subsequent Management Action Plans (MAPs) may have had 
budgetary implications associated with their implementation and have been 
accommodated within current operating budgets. 

Analysis 

This report is intended to be an update on the status of Management’s 
implementation of the audit recommendations since 2015.  All recommendations 
that have not been fully implemented within the management approved 
timeframe will be highlighted in this report for Audit Committee’s attention. 

In total, Niagara Region has 80 audit recommendations brought forward through past 
completed audits.  Details of these 80 recommendations are as follows: 
 

 ICOP is satisfied that 57 of the recommendations have been fully implemented, 
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 In addition, 12 of the recommendations are in progress and proceeding with 
satisfactory implementation plans in place, 

 One of the recommendations put forth by ICOP is listed as not started. This 
recommendation will commence following Council decision points, 

 Two recommendations remain on hold, 

 Finally, eight recommendations are in progress, but behind schedule. 
 
The attached appendix provides a detailed status of all recommendations, including 
expected completion dates. 
 
This type of follow up report is considered best practice as per the Institute of Internal 
Auditors guiding principles, which ICOP adheres to.  The quarterly follow up process 
ensures that Management and Staff are held accountable for the implementation of 
action plans which they have committed to.  The follow up provides valuable information 
to members of Audit Committee in the execution of their oversight and governance role. 

Alternatives Reviewed 

No other alternatives were reviewed at this time. 

Relationship to Council Strategic Priorities 

Value-For-Money audits were identified and approved as the previous Council’s 
Strategic Priority – Advancing Organizational Excellence.  The goal of this Strategic 
Priority was to “Build a strong internal foundation for Niagara Region to enable a more 
prosperous Niagara.” 
 
Following completion on the 2015 and 2016 audits, Council approved having a 
permanent Internal Audit function situated within the renamed Internal Control and 
Organizational Performance division. 
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Other Pertinent Reports  

AC-C 8-2017 Annual Follow Up Status of Audit Recommendations 
AC-C 15-2018 Management Action Plan and Follow-up Status Report 
AC-C 21-2018 Q1 2018 Follow up Status of Audit Recommendations 
AC-C 34-2018 Q2 2018 Follow up Status of Audit Recommendations 
AC-C 3-2019 Q1 2019 Follow up Status of Audit Recommendations 
 
 

________________________________ 
Prepared by: 
Xiang Gao, MBA 
Internal Audit Analyst 
Internal Control and Organizational 
Performance 

________________________________ 
Recommended by: 
Todd Harrison, CPA, CMA 
Commissioner/Treasurer 
Enterprise Resource and Management 
Services 
 

________________________________ 
Submitted by: 
Ron Tripp, P.Eng. 
Acting Chief Administrative Officer  
 
This report was reviewed by Maciej Jurczyk, Director, Internal Control and Organizational 
Performance. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 AC-C 14-2019 Appendix 1 – Final Summary                  Page 1 
Appendix 2              AC-C 14-2019 Appendix 2 – Final Detailed                     Page 1 to 4 
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On 

Schedule

Behind 

Schedule

2
0
1
5

Burgoyne Bridge 8 0 0 1 1 6

2
0
1
6

Fleet Management 4 0 0 1 0 3

Fleet Parts Inventory and Fuel 9 1 0 3 1 4

Mobile Telecommunications 8 0 0 0 0 8

Waste and Recycling Drop-Off Depot Agreement 2 0 0 1 0 1

Payroll 1 - Timekeeping 3 0 2 0 0 1

Payroll 2 - Payroll Processing 1 0 0 0 0 1

Grants and Incentives 4 0 4 0 0 0

Controlled Medications Inventory 3 0 1 0 0 2

Accounts Payable 2 0 2 0 0 0

Information Technology Security and Data Backup 

Controls 
20 0 3 2 0 15

64 1 12 8 2 41

Total # of

Recommendations
Audit Name Not Started On Hold

Fully 

Implemented

0%

75%

Total 64%

44%

100%

2
0
1
8

50%

33%

100%

0%

67%

2
0
1
7

75%

INTERNAL CONTROL & ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE

FOLLOW UP STATUS REPORT

Current Status as of April 18, 2019

In Progress
Percentage 

Completion

75%
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Audit Report Title
Observation Title and Brief 

Description
Recommendation per Audit Report Management Action Plan per Audit Report

Accountable Individual 

& Title

Original 

Completion 

Date 

MM/DD/YYYY

Issue Status Follow Up Comments

Burgoyne Bridge 

Audit
Procurement

The Region should develop a policy and define criteria for sole and single sourcing Review of the existing policy (and newly implemented EFMS system) for sole and single sourced procurement to 

ensure that system controls are functioning as expected (Validate compliance & controls, report back on review). 

Undertake a best practice review of awarding contract administration on significant projects.

Bart Menage, Director, 

Procurement & Strategic 

Acquisitions

Jeff Mulligan

12/31/2017 Completed

As per Bart Menage (Director, Procurement & Strategic Acquisitions) on 04/09/2019:

The amendments to the Procurement By-law has completed. Further review on Single and Sole Source criteria will be 

conducted when ICOP completes the Single/Source audit in 2019.

As per Bart Menage (Director, Procurement & Strategic Acquisitions) on 04/10/2018: 

Pursuant to Council approval of the initial amendments to the Procurement By-law in February 2019, in March 2019, 

Council via recommendations from the Procurement Advisory Committee approved a specific procurement work plan 

item which will consider further amendments to the By-law including due consideration to Single and Sole Source 

criteria.  These revisions will be reviewed against any recommendations derived from the Single/Sole Source Audit 

which is scheduled to be completed by Internal Audit in Q3 2019

As per Bart Menage (Director, Procurement & Strategic Acquisitions) on 01/10/2018: 

The Procurement Advisory Committee endorsed a workplan in November 2017 which includes a broad review of all 

policies and procedures.  This includes review of single/sole sourcing contracts.  In addition, ICOP will be completing 

an assurance audit on Single/Sole Source projects within 2018.  The recommendations of that audit will be considered 

by the Procurement Advisory Committee for implementation.  

No change from the previous report.  Developing and defining criteria for sole and single source procurement will be 

reviewed upon the completion of the Single/Sole Sourced Procurement audit included on the 2019 Audit Plan. 

MAP will be reviewed once the 2018 Single/Sole Source Procurement audit is completed.

Burgoyne Bridge 

Audit
Cost Estimating

The Region should develop a structured estimating process to allow for accurate monitoring, control, forecasting and 

reporting of project costs.

1. Large construction projects:                                

Provide estimates at various project stages utilizing the

services of qualified cost consultant’s/quantity

surveyors

2. Lifecycle renewal projects:

Use structured estimating as applicable for the particular project

3. Structured cost estimating:

Different cost estimating should be applied based on the type of capital project. Large projects should engage 

qualified cost consultants at various stages

4. Job order contracting: 

Pilot in progress for facilities lifecycle renewal projects and maintenance projects. Provides unit pricing for projects 

on an ongoing basis for a set term

Kashif Siraj, Manager, 

Implementation & 

Analysis

On Hold

As per Kashif Siraj (Manager, Project Management Office) on 04/12/2019:

The status will remain exactly the same as last time update.

As per Kashif Siraj (Manager, Project Management Office) on 01/11/2019:  

Estimates for Capital Initiatives are developed as part of the business cases for budget approvals. PMO will be 

looking into standardizing Validation of these Estimates early on in the capital projects. Once the Asset Management 

Office is in place the PMO will collaborate and align with it on Estimation.

Maciej Jurczyk, Aug 20, 2018:

Discussions with Senior Management in PW and Finance in May 2018 resulted in ICOP taking a leadership role in 

cost estimating.  Pending the creation of the PMO on Sept 10, 2018, this unit will be accountable for this work going 

forward.

No update for the May 7, 2018 Audit Committee report, still on hold.

Due to staff leave of absence special projects related to this recommendation have been put on hold pending return.  

Burgoyne Bridge 

Audit
Document Management

The Region should develop and implement a formal document management process for all projects Review of current corporate processes to:

1. Determine immediate actions required to have all Burgoyne Bridge records brought into compliance

2. Develop document management best practices

    - compare against lead/best practices and identify areas for improvement

   - ensure implementation of the process across the organization

3. Report back on this review and any proposed recommendations and actions

Tom Jamieson, 

Associate Director, 

Application and 

Information Services

1. 08/31/2016

2. 12/31/2016

3. 03/31/2017

In progress 

late

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Tom Jamieson (Associate Director, Application and Information Services) on 

01/11/2019:

To address gaps around process, management and information governance an audit of information and content has 

been scheduled for Jan. and Feb. This will entail sessions with each Department or Division to inventory key 

information (including documents) supporting their business, the processes around it and any risks or improvement 

opportunities.  The information gathered through these sessions will support both the Business Intelligence and 

Enterprise Content Management (including document management) projects. Once this information has been 

analyzed, it will be used to create requirements for an Enterprise Content Management system which will be included 

in an RFP.  It is anticipated that this RFP will be released in March.

As per discussion with Tom Jamieson (Associate Director, Application and Information Services) on 

08/24/2018: “After researching best practices and on the advice of peer organizations who have undertaken similar 

projects,  the team has determined that prior to going to RFP for a technology solution, it would be prudent to evaluate 

the Corporation’s readiness  and to develop a strategic roadmap to guide the project.  

In June a vendor with extensive expertise in assessing readiness for government organizations was engaged to 

facilitate a series of workshops to capture current state for the Region, as well as to assess the maturity of the 

organization.   

It is their recommendation, that the Region has some deficiencies to address before we are able to release an RFP, 

and that doing so prematurely would be a significant risk for the organization.  The areas the Region must focus on 

prior to RFP are process management and information governance.  By addressing these issues, the Region will 

increase our level of maturity (in information governance and process management).  IT Services and the Office of the 

Regional Clerk, are working jointly on these items.  

Therefore, the project members recommend the Region focus on the priority areas identified by the vendor in the short-

term prior to issuing an RFP for a technology solution.  

The Team also recommends contracting a Project Director using the capital budget for this initiative to oversee and 
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Date 
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Fleet, Equipment 

Management and 

Replacement 

Process

Fleet Strategies, Policies, Procedures

Management should formalize the Fleet Strategy and set priorities or areas of focus to provide direction to fleet 

services. The strategy could be supported by a life cycle costing framework or align to the enterprise wide asset 

management planning initiatives. Performance and value metrics should be set to align to strategic directives and 

should be periodically tracked. Council approval should be sought once the fleet strategy is documented.

1. Develop a Fleet strategy statement to be presented to Public Works Committee for approval, prior to seeking 

approval from Regional Council (update report to Audit Committee to follow)

2. Fleet strategy will be incorporated into overall Asset Management Plan

3. Performance measures should be developed and tracked to align with the overall Fleet Strategy.

4. Review Fleet policies and procedures as required.

Shawn McCauley 

(Associate Director 

Transportation) 

and 

Ken Williams 

(Supervisor Fleet 

Operations)

1. 06/2017

2. Ongoing

3. Ongoing

4. Ongoing

In progress 

late

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received.

As per correspondence with Shawn McCauley (Associate Director, Transportation) on 12/19/2018:

1. As part of restructuring a new division was created to run this area in 2019, once the new Associate Director is in 

place the division will finalize the statement.  On target to complete this by end of Q1, 2019 

As per correspondence with Shawn McCauley (Associate Director, Transportation) on 08/10/2018:

1. Mission statement has been finalized and is under review by senior staff.

Estimated completion date: 03/31/2019

2 - 4. Previously completed

As per follow up correspondence with Shawn McCauley (Associate Director, Transportation) on 04/03/2018:

1. Ken Williams has reached out to staff but the mission statement has not been formalized. Winter season was 

busier than usual and as a result it tied up a lot of staff time.

2-4. Previously completed

As per discussion with Shawn McCauley and Ken Williams (Associate Director, Transportation) on 

01/08/2018:

1. Ken Williams came up with a draft mission statement, it was put on hold due to a reorganization of positions within 

the department. The mission statement is on Shawn's Q1/2018 to do list. Shawn mentioned that they want to work 

with staff within the department to get their feedback to develop and fine tune the mission statement.

2. Ongoing

3. Ongoing

4. Ongoing 

Mobile 

Telecommunications 

Audit

Streamlining end user access to 

monthly mobile telecommunication 

bills, possibly through the use of 3rd 

part billing management companies

1. IT staff should research the benefits of 3rd party mobile management software further and consider implementation 1. IT staff is currently assessing Telecom Expense Management (TEM) solutation to assist with management of 

devices and to achieve great transparency for the IT staff, managers and end user. Costs associated with a TEM 

solution run in the range of a $3-$10/device/month.

Julie Max, Associate 

Director Infrastructure 

and Operations

06/30/2018 Completed

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director Infrastructure and Operations) on 04/10/2019:

A vendor was selected that works with Rogers as part of the VOR agreement.  The vendor is named CIMPL.  The go-

live date is currently set for May 15th with communications to come out to staff over the next month.

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director Infrastructure and Operations) on 01/07/2019:

TEM system POC just completed – Q4 likely for prod deployment once we get VOR signed. – end of Q1 2019

As per correspondence with Julie Max on (Associate Director Infrastructure and Operations) on 04/24/2018:

1) Currently underway

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director Infrastructure and Operations) on 08/10/2018: 

TEM system POC has been completed. Product deployment will likely be Q4, 2018 once the VOR is signed. 

Estimated completion date: Q4, 2018 (Dec 31, 2018)

Mobile 

Telecommunications 

Audit

Potential operational risk due to lack 

of a formalized contract with Rogers 

after transitioning to the Province of 

Ontario Agreement

1. The Region should reach out to Rogers and draft and formalize a written contract. 1. Report DCAO01-2017, Cellular Devices & Services Contract was approved at Corporate Services Committee on 

April 19, 2017. The recommendation was to leverage the existing VOR agreement. This was approved. 

Procurement and Legal are in the process of formalizing the agreement with Rogers.

Procurement/Legal 03/31/2018 Completed

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director Infrastructure and Operations) on 04/10/2019:

All agreements have been signed by vendor and Region with Legal approval

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director Infrastructure and Operations) 01/07/2019: 

VOR – Should be completed soon.  Legal currently signing it and we are waiting on them – Q4 likely for completion - 

end of Q1 2019

As per correspondence with Julie Max on (Associate Director Infrastructure and Operations) 04/24/2018:

1) Currently underway

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director Infrastructure and Operations) on 08/10/2018: The 

VOR should be completed soon. Currently awaiting signatures from legal.

Estimated completion date: Q4, 2018 (Dec 31, 2018)
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Fleet Parts Inventory 

& Fuel Audit

Niagara Recycling Centre - Area to 

improve internal controls

1. Fuel dip tests should be conducted two times a week in order to monitor fuel levels and perform reconciliations.  The 

twice-weekly dip tests should be conducted at the start of the work week, first shift Monday morning, and then the end 

of the work week, last shift Friday evening.

2. Fuel reconciliations should be completed on a daily basis. The reconciliations should account for opening fuel levels, 

deliveries and consumption for the day. This amount should be compared and reconciled to the twice-weekly fuel dip 

tests. Variances should be examined.

3. Assuming that the Niagara Region will retain ownership and continue to operate the Recycling Centre, Niagara 

Region staff should research the cost associated, and if feasible, install automatic fuel pumps in correlation with an 

automated fuel management system (such as the CoenCorp system utilized by Public Works).

4. In the interim, the Recycling Centre should continue and/or begin the following:

a. Implement and enforce a policy whereby circle checks are not allowed to be turned in with nil values. The employee 

is required to fill out the circle check, indicating the amount of fuel they pumped into their unit or they are required to 

indicated that nil fuel was pumped and initial the box. Each form should be signed by the operator on a daily basis in 

order to improve and foster accountability.

b. A ticket system should be implemented for any fueling transactions not completed at the time of the circle check. The 

ticket system will ensure that there is a tracking system in place for all fuel transactions which will improve record 

keeping, reporting and directly affect the ability to complete reconciliations.

1. As per recommendation 1, Niagara Region staff to conduct manual dip test twice weekly to reconcile fueling 

transactions throughout the week. Dip stick ordered and received on Nov 22nd. Implementation starting week of 

November 27, 2017.

2. As per recommendation2, Niagara Recycling staff will complete fuel reconciliations on a daily basis. Niagara 

Region's Contract Manager will be responsible for reviewing tracking spreadsheet every month to look for 

variances/discrepancies. First monthly review scheduled for January 2018. Daily reconciliations start date 

November 13, 2017.

3. As per recommendation 3, and dependent on Council's direction on Niagara Region's role in recycling processing 

operations as part of the Waste-Free Ontario Act, Niagara Region's Contract Manager will research automated 

systems used at Regional facilities, and, depending on cost, will procure and install automatic fuel pumps in 

correlation with an automated fuel management system.

4. Implementation of a ticket based system for all fueling transactions. Staff will no longer be documenting 

information on circle checks, as circle check is complete at beginning of shift and fuel transactions occur throughout 

the day. Alternatively, as per pe recommendation 4b, ticket information includes the following: date, unit number, 

fuel usage, odometer reading and signature of operator. Complete - started Nov 13, 2017.

Allison Tyldesley 

(Associate Director, 

Waste Collection & 

Diversion)

in Allison's absence, 

Jennifer Wilson 

(Supervisor Waste 

Management)

1.  Nov 27, 

2017

2. Nov 13, 2017 

and January, 

2018

3. Ongoing

4. Nov 13, 2017

On Hold

As per Jennifer Wilson (Supervisor, Waste Management) on 04/17/2019:

3. Still on hold pending decision on MRF

As per Jennifer Wilson (Supervisor, Waste Management) on 01/22/2019:  

Action plan is awaiting to be presented and approved by Council. No data has been provided when it will be presented 

at this point.  All MAPs have been fully implemented with the exception of #3 which is dependent on Council's 

direction and will be implemented once a decision is known.

As per correspondence with Jennifer Wilson (Supervisor, Waste Management) on 08/10/2018:

1. Completed

2. Completed

3. Dependent on Council's direction and will be implemented once a  decision is known.

4. Completed

As per correspondence with Jennifer Wilson (Supervisor, Waste Management) on 04/04/2018:

1. Fully implemented

2. Fully implemented

3. Dependent on Council’s direction

4. Fully implemented 

Fleet Parts Inventory 

& Fuel Audit

Public Works - Automation of fueling 

system at Smithville yard

Public Works should research the cost and, if feasible, implement the CoenCorp automated fueling system at the 

Smithville yard.

Staff are in the process of reviewing the recommendations from a consultant report on Niagara Patrol Yards 

Retrofit, Smithville and Pelham Patrol Yards completed in 2013 that has been on hold while we completed an 

external audit on Snowplowing, Road Maintenance and Landscaping Services. Based on the recommendations in 

these reports and the condition of the fueling system at the Smithville Yard, staff are not recommending installing 

the CoenCorp fuel system at this time. If staff follow through with the recommendation to consolidate both yards 

into one facility, the fueling system at Pelham was built to be transferable to the new consolidated yard location. 

The current fuel storage system as Smithville is undersized and was built only as a temporary measure. If a final 

decision is made to keep Smithville Patrol Yard open than the costs of installing new tanks with the CoenCorp fuel 

system will be incorporated within the capital budget.

Shawn McCauley, 

Associate Director 

Transportation and Fleet 

Operations

Dec 31, 2017 Not Started

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Shawn McCauley (Associate Director, Transportation) on 12/19/2018:

Delayed until restructuring of the division is complete.

Estimated completion date: June 30, 2019

Dependent on decision to consolidate the yards or not

As per correspondence with Shawn McCauley (08/10/2018):

A consultant is going to be hired to conduct a yard rationale study in 4th quarter of 2018. 

Fleet Parts Inventory 

& Fuel Audit

Public Works - Inventory storage and 

reconciliation process

1. Inventory cycle counts should continue to be conducted on a quarterly basis. Staff working at each respective yard 

should be informed of the count results and required to follow up with Management on variances.

2. Management should develop an internal guideline as to how many variances are considered to be an acceptable 

variance

3. When unacceptable variances are noted on more than one occasion, Management should conduct cycle counts on a 

more frequent basis (bi-monthly) in order to ensure inventory existence and accuracy until counts are within acceptable 

variance limits

4. The Smithville inventory storage room should be reorganized using the bin location format applied at the other 

locations

5. Management should implement a system, whereby staff taking an inventory item off the shelf, he/she uses the hand 

held scanner to scan the barcode affixed to the shelving to add the item to the work order rather than manually adding 

the item, mitigating the risk of an incorrect item being added to the work order 

6. If Public Works decides to consolidate the current yard locations, they should investigate the incremental cost of 

adding a stock clerk to the remaining location(s)

1. Inventory cycle counts are part of our current inventory process guideline manual in Cityworks, this document will 

be updated to include the M5 inventory.

2. Current Cityworks internal inventory process identifies a variance reporting mechanism and a process for 

recounts if there are any unusual variances. The manual will be updated to include the M5 inventory including 

identifying acceptable variance limits.

3. The update manual will include a section on a procedure to handle unacceptable variances including 

recommending bimonthly counts where required

4. Staff will reorganize Smithville into bin locations after the 2017 year end inventory reconciliation

5. Current scanners are not capable of adding items directly onto a work order. Staff will review and determine if 

this functionality can be programmed into our current scanners or will an upgrade be required

6. Staffing levels will be reviewed once a decision on the yard locations is made, including adding an additional staff 

member to deal with the stock at the Patrol Yards. Currently there are only two Road Operations Clerk for the four 

Patrol Yards. These positions have stock responsibility in their job descriptions, adding a third in a three yard model 

will help control both fleet and road inventory levels

Ken Williams 

(Supervisor Fleet 

Operations) 

and

Shawn McCauley 

(Associate Director 

Transportation and Fleet 

Operations)

March 31, 2018
In progress 

late

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per discussion with Shawn McCauley (Associate Director, Transportation), on 12/19/2018:

1-3. Process updated and utilized to conduct year end counts.

4. Previously completed.

5. Upgrade required as part of the division's mobile solution strategy.  Currently waiting on IT.

6. Delayed until the restructuring of the division is complete

Estimated completion date: June 30, 2019

As per discussion with Shawn McCauley (Associate Director, Transportation) on 08/10/2018:

1. In progress

2. In progress

3. In progress

4. Complete

5. In progress

6. Consultant to be hired to conduct yard rationale study in 4th quarter of 2018.

Estimated completion date: 12/31/2018

As per discussions with Shawn McCauley (04/05/2018), 

MAP #4 is fully implemented while the remainder are still in progress. Staff have not had time to complete the 

remainder of the MAPs with the absence of the Traffic Manager. Have had to take on some the responsibilities.

Fleet Parts Inventory 

& Fuel Audit

EMS - Maximization of available 

discounts

1. Management should continue to encourage the use of the key fobs and the follow up of employees when it is noted 

that the key fob was not used at the respective gas station

2. Management should inquire with the key fob provider if there are any increased savings plans based on volume of 

fuel they are purchasing on an annual basis

1. We observe approximately a 30% utilization of the key fob vs. Visa card. We will communicate with staff to use 

key fob or Visa Card with key fob vendor as first choice, and use alternate fuel providers if key fob vendor is not 

available. We will set up a meeting involving upper management, fleet and our Operation's team to discuss the best 

course of action to increase the use of the key fob

2. We will reach out to Corporate, ICOP and key fob vendor sales representative to see if further discounts can be 

gained or if there are other incentive programs available since we adopted the use of the key fob. Our Pcard is used 

approximately 70% of the time and reconciling the monthly statement is time consuming and lends itself to risk of 

human error. We will be seeking out advice from our Region IT dept. to see if they can come up with an electronic 

solution to automatically populate our current internal spread sheets to mitigate human error. Ralph Paolini (Manager, 

EMS and Support 

Services)

February 2018
In progress 

late

As per conversation with Ralph Paolini (Manager, EMS and Support Services) on 04/16/2019:

Purchasing is in the process of having all Regional fuel purchasers involved in trying to have all criteria noted included 

in a purchasing contract with a particular fuel vendor. Preliminary findings show all criteria mentioned in the audit can 

be satisfied. 

As per conversation with Ralph Paolini (Manager, EMS and Support Services) on 12/19/2018:

Procurement is in the process of completing the work.

As per conversation with Ralph Paolini (Manager, EMS and Support Services) and Bart Menage (Director, 

Procurement and Strategic Acquisitions) on 08/20/2018: Procurement is in the process of completing the work.

As per correspondence received from Ralph Paolini (03/27/2018), 

1. Fully implemented

2.  EMS has found 2 providers that would meet all of their requirements (volume discounts, store hours, security 

aspects when dealing with Pcard or fob, record keeping, use friendliness). They are currently working with 

Procurement on this MAP. 
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Fleet Parts Inventory 

& Fuel Audit

EMS - Opportunities to automate 

record keeping process 

1. Management should discuss with the key fob provider if there is a capacity in which they can receive the statement 

electronically and download them into their vehicle operation data report or online platform in order to save time and 

mitigate the risk of human error

2. Management should download PCard transactions and download the transactions into their vehicle operation data 

report or online platform in order to save time and mitigate the risk of human error. EMS may want to discuss with the 

IT department a spreadsheet in which the PCard data can be downloaded, sorted and summarized based on their 

requirements for the vehicle operation data report

1. We will meet with Corporate and fuel provider to investigate any software upgrades (mileage, vehicle call sign ID, 

signature, cost and litres used) of their system for reconciling monthly statements

2. Our Pcard is used approximately 70% of the time and reconciling the monthly statement is time consuming and 

lends itself to risk of human error. We will be seeking  out advice from our Region IT dept. to see if they can come 

up with an electronic solution to automatically populate our current internal spread sheets to mitigate human error. 

Ralph Paolini (Manager, 

EMS and Support 

Services)

February 2018
In progress 

late

As per conversation with Ralph Paolini (Manager, EMS and Support Services) on 04/16/2019:

Purchasing is in the process of having all Regional fuel purchasers involved in trying to have all criteria noted included 

in a purchasing contract with a particular fuel vendor. Preliminary findings show all criteria mentioned in the audit can 

be satisfied. 

As per conversation with Ralph Paolini (Manager, EMS and Support Services) on 12/19/2018:

Procurement is in the process of completing the work.

As per conversation with Ralph Paolini (Manager, EMS and Support Services) and Bart Menage (Director, 

Procurement and Strategic Acquisitions) on 08/20/2018: Procurement is in the process of completing the work.

As per correspondence received from Ralph Paolini (Manager, EMS and Support Services) on 03/27/2018: 

1. Fully implemented

2.  EMS has found 2 providers that would meet all of their requirements (volume discounts, store hours, security 

aspects when dealing with Pcard or fob, record keeping, use friendliness). They are currently working with 

Procurement on this MAP. 

Waste and Recycling 

Drop-Off Depot 

Agreement Audit

Opportunity to enhance transparency 

of reported information from the 

vendor

1. Waste Management staff at Niagara Region should discuss with the vendor the possibility of including tipping fee as 

one of the selected data fields on the daily transfer of information. Waste Management should request that the pre-tax 

tipping fee amount, tax amount and gross tipping fee amount be reported on a daily basis so that montly and quarterly 

reconciliations may be completed easier. 

2. Waste Management staff should discuss with the vendor, the possibility of enhancing the reporting process so that 

both tonnage and revenues are reported on a quarterly basis. As a result of the enhancements, Waste Management 

staff may be able to reconicle the systems, compute royalty amounts and monitor information with increased ease and 

efficiency.

1. Niagara Region holds quarterly meetings with the vendor. The next meeting is to be scheduled in late Q2. The 

issue will be brought forward to see if tipping fee can be a selected data field. The Region will investigate if the 

quarterly report can be done on a monthly basis showing pre-tax tipping fee amount, tax amount and gross tipping 

fee amount. 

2. Niagara Region hold quarterly meetings with the vendor. The next meeting is to be scheduled in late Q2. The 

issue will be brought forward to see if tonnage can be added to the quarterly report. If the vendor is in agreement to 

supply this information. 
Waste Disposal 

Operations Program 

Manager

1. 09/30/2018

2. 07/31/2018

In progress 

late

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Andrew Winters (Waste Disposal Operations Program Manager) on 01/09/2019:

1. The vendor currently are unable to select this data field. Next time they have to upgrade their program they will look 

at feasibility if they can implement  this request. 

2. The vendor agreed that they would add the tonnages to the quarterly report. They will start in Q4 report.

As per discussion with Andrew Winters (Waste Disposal Operations Program Manager) on 08/16/2018:

A meeting was held with the Vendor on June 4, 2018 in which items #1 and #2 were raised. The Vendor is going to go 

back to their IT department for validation but Vendor didn't think it would be an issue.

MAP#1 is still on target to be completed for the original September 30, 2018 completion date. The Vendor indicated 

that item #2 would be completed at the same time.

Grants and 

Incentives Audit

The Region needs to consider 

program rationalization

1. Regional Council needs to reaffirm the alignment of current programs with Council objectives and/or priority projects 

at least once during each term of Council.

2. Regional Council needs to rationalize the number of programs that it manages and funds and ensure that new or 

remaining programs have direct alignment to the Region's core mandate. The Region should develop an exit strategy to 

terminate its participation in the following programs: Building and Facade; Heritage Restoration and Improvement; 

Environmental Assessment; Planning Studies; Residential Grant/Loan

3. Regional Council needs to reconsider its participation in the following programs given the limited client uptake: 

Agricultural Buildings and Facilities Revitalization Grant/Loan; Agricultural Feasibility Study Grant; and Affordable 

Housing Grant/Loan Program

4. The Region needs to re-evaluate its role as the administrative lead in Niagara Investiment in Culture and consider 

either providing block funding to Local Area Municipalities or transfer full administrative responsibility to an external 

agency (ie: Niagara Prosperity Initiative, Prokids).

5. The Region should consider repurposing budgets and resources from any programs it is no longer financially 

supporting to those programs that have high strategic alignment to ensure these programs are being delivered at the 

appropriate financial scope and scale.

Representatives from Economic Development, Finance and Planning and Development have reviewed the 

observations and associated comments provided in Phase 1 and 2 of the Grant and Incentives Programs audit. The 

implementation of the observations as proposed needs to be carefully considered as there would be significant 

impact on:

- the delivery of grant and incentives programs

- resources allocated within Regional Departments and Local Area Municipalities; and

- the applicants of the grant and incentive programs

In order to adequately assess the observations and make considered recommendations on grant and incentive 

programs moving forward, it is recommended that a Working Group is established consisting of representatives 

from Economic Development, Finance, Planning and Development and ICOP. The Working Group will report to 

CLT.

Doug Giles, Director, 

Community and Long 

Range Planning

In progress 

on time

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Marian Bannerman (Program Manager, Grants and Incentives) on 01/24/2019:

As outlined in the Management Action Plan, an inter-departmental Incentive Review Working Group met several times 

during Q4 2018 to develop recommendations regarding potential incentive target areas and options for program 

resourcing and delivery .  An education session for Regional Council on existing Regional incentive programs and the 

status and next steps of the Incentive Review is anticipated in February 2019, with a similar session anticipated to be 

provided for interested Local Area Municipal staff in March.   Following leadership review of the Working Group 

recommendations, a report will go forward (likely in May-June 2019)  to Planning and Economic Development 

Committee and Regional Council for consideration.    

Per discussion with Doug Giles and Marian Bannerman (08/24/2018): 

a report will be going go Planning and Development Committee that highlights the result of a survey of Local Area 

Municipalities.  A full strategy on how to implement the recommendations will be developed in Q1 2019 following an 

orientation to the various programs delivered for the new Regional Council. 

Grants and 

Incentives Audit

Lack of master agreement or 

standard operating procedures

1. Regional staff needs to develop foundational documents such as a Master Agreement and Standard Operating 

Procedures in conjunction with its LAM partners. Some items to be included within the master agreement are:

a. Details of the program objectives from a Regional perspective

b. Regional criteria to be considered during application evaluation/approval and post-award monitoring phases, i.e. jobs 

created, minimum external investment threshold.

c. Enforcement of Regional standards and approval procedures

2. Regional staff, along with LAMs, should define its optimal business model, such as a delegated authority model. This 

will establish the parameters around the business relationship and support the description of roles and responsibilities 

for all parties in the delivery of grant and incentive programs. 

a. If the Region continues with Type B and Type C program models, whereby the LAMs provide post-award monitoring 

or verification, then a right to audit clause should be developed and enforced. 

b. As an alternative, if a right to audit clause cannot be agreed upon within the master agreement, the Region should 

consider implementing an indemnity clause to protect the Region from exposure to legal or financial liability. 

3. Following the drafting of a Standard Operating Procedure for all the programs, the Region should develop flow charts 

and work descriptions that detail the following service levels:

a. Appropriate level of due diligence required from each party

b. Communication requirements and frequency,

c. Documentation to support application approval and payment processing

d. Ongoing and post-award monitoring to ensure application criteria have been satisfied; and

e. Timeliness and quality of project, program and performance reporting.

Representatives from Economic Development, Finance and Planning and Development have reviewed the 

observations and associated comments provided in Phase 1 and 2 of the Grant and Incentives Programs audit. The 

implementation of the observations as proposed needs to be carefully considered as there would be significant 

impact on:

- the delivery of grant and incentives programs

- resources allocated within Regional Departments and Local Area Municipalities; and

- the applicants of the grant and incentive programs

In order to adequately assess the observations and make considered recommendations on grant and incentive 

programs moving forward, it is recommended that a Working Group is established consisting of representatives 

from Economic Development, Finance, Planning and Development and ICOP. The Working Group will report to 

CLT.

Doug Giles, Director, 

Community and Long 

Range Planning

In progress 

on time

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Marian Bannerman (Program Manager, Grants and Incentives) on 01/24/2019:

As outlined in the Management Action Plan, an inter-departmental Incentive Review Working Group met several times 

during Q4 2018 to develop recommendations regarding potential incentive target areas and options for program 

resourcing and delivery .  An education session for Regional Council on existing Regional incentive programs and the 

status and next steps of the Incentive Review is anticipated in February 2019, with a similar session anticipated to be 

provided for interested Local Area Municipal staff in March.   Following leadership review of the Working Group 

recommendations, a report will go forward (likely in May-June 2019)  to Planning and Economic Development 

Committee and Regional Council for consideration.    

Per discussion with Doug Giles and Marian Bannerman (08/24/2018): 

a report will be going go Planning and Development Committee that highlights the result of a survey of Local Area 

Municipalities.  A full strategy on how to implement the recommendations will be developed in Q1 2019 following an 

orientation to the various programs delivered for the new Regional Council. 
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Grants and 

Incentives Audit

Insufficient performance measures to 

report on program success and 

compliance

1. Regional staff needs to further develop performance measures for all of its grant and incentive programs along with 

templates to support the LAMs in the collection, verification and reporting on the program successes. As a foundation 

the Region should develop performance measures categorized by volume, outputs, performance and qualitative as 

desribed in Appendix X. 

2. Regional staff needs to develop an effective post-award monitoring methodology, especially for Type C programs, 

those administered by the LAMs and funded by the Region.

3. Regional staff needs to conduct regular comprehensive program evaluations (i.e. once per Council term) to ensure 

program objectives are continously satisfying its original and intended goals. For all programs the Region should 

develop a sunset clause that defines the timing of when to conduct program evaluations. 

Representatives from Economic Development, Finance and Planning and Development have reviewed the 

observations and associated comments provided in Phase 1 and 2 of the Grant and Incentives Programs audit. The 

implementation of the observations as proposed needs to be carefully considered as there would be significant 

impact on:

- the delivery of grant and incentives programs

- resources allocated within Regional Departments and Local Area Municipalities; and

- the applicants of the grant and incentive programs

In order to adequately assess the observations and make considered recommendations on grant and incentive 

programs moving forward, it is recommended that a Working Group is established consisting of representatives 

from Economic Development, Finance, Planning and Development and ICOP. The Working Group will report to 

CLT.

Doug Giles, Director, 

Community and Long 

Range Planning

In progress 

on time

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Marian Bannerman (Program Manager, Grants and Incentives) on 01/24/2019:

As outlined in the Management Action Plan, an inter-departmental Incentive Review Working Group met several times 

during Q4 2018 to develop recommendations regarding potential incentive target areas and options for program 

resourcing and delivery .  An education session for Regional Council on existing Regional incentive programs and the 

status and next steps of the Incentive Review is anticipated in February 2019, with a similar session anticipated to be 

provided for interested Local Area Municipal staff in March.   Following leadership review of the Working Group 

recommendations, a report will go forward (likely in May-June 2019)  to Planning and Economic Development 

Committee and Regional Council for consideration.    

Per discussion with Doug Giles and Marian Bannerman (08/24/2018): 

a report will be going go Planning and Development Committee that highlights the result of a survey of Local Area 

Municipalities.  A full strategy on how to implement the recommendations will be developed in Q1 2019 following an 

orientation to the various programs delivered for the new Regional Council. 

Grants and 

Incentives Audit

The Region can provide greater value-

added support to improve 

administrative efficiency and program 

success

1. The Region should work with LAMs to develop an effective web portal and Regional website landing page to improve 

communication, reporting, and sharing of information and documentation between partner municipalities. 

2. The Region needs to study the merits, benefits and risks of converting grant programs to loans to create greater 

sustainability. 

3. The Region should develop minimum investment thresholds (i.e. $100,000 per project) to increase scale, overall ROI 

and efficiences. 

4. Based on the entire inventory of Regional grant and incentive programs, the Region should review the creation of a 

seperate function with dedicated resources that specializes in grant administration and is reliant upon the technical 

support of program areas. 

With respect to Redesgining Programs as Loans, it was felt that this particular observation is not an option for the 

delivery of grant and incentive programs; hoever comments relating to this should be provided as part of the 

assessment and recommendations made by the Working Group to CLT. 

Doug Giles, Director, 

Community and Long 

Range Planning

In progress 

on time

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Marian Bannerman (Program Manager, Grants and Incentives) on 01/24/2019:

As outlined in the Management Action Plan, an inter-departmental Incentive Review Working Group met several times 

during Q4 2018 to develop recommendations regarding potential incentive target areas and options for program 

resourcing and delivery .  An education session for Regional Council on existing Regional incentive programs and the 

status and next steps of the Incentive Review is anticipated in February 2019, with a similar session anticipated to be 

provided for interested Local Area Municipal staff in March.   Following leadership review of the Working Group 

recommendations, a report will go forward (likely in May-June 2019)  to Planning and Economic Development 

Committee and Regional Council for consideration.    

Per discussion with Doug Giles and Marian Bannerman (08/24/2018): 

a report will be going go Planning and Development Committee that highlights the result of a survey of Local Area 

Municipalities.  A full strategy on how to implement the recommendations will be developed in Q1 2019 following an 

orientation to the various programs delivered for the new Regional Council. 

Information 

Technology Security 

and Data Backup 

Controls Audit

Cybersecurity Management - Security 

systems Architecture

A. It is recommended to limit the access from the branch locations to the Region’s network by placing the branch 

locations into a separate security zone and only allow the bare minimum required for business operation.

B. -  The branch location’s network is to be segmented; separating the managed from the unmanaged devices and only 

allow access to the Region’s network to managed devices.

- Segment end-user devices, included managed devices, into controlled zones treated as semi-trusted to limit exposure 

to critical infrastructure as application and database servers.

A. Non Corporate internet is currently on separated network segmentation with no communication to the corporate 

network. We are implementing physical security to the ports (network port locks) on the non Corporate internet 

ports of the switch at the branch office locations to reduce risk.

B. The Region will be implementing segmented security zones through Corporate firewall for critical servers to 

reduce exposure.

Julie Max

(Associate Director, 

Infrastructure and 

Operations)

In progress 

late

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director, Infrastructure and Operations) on 01/15/2019:

A. The network locks have been purchased and are scheduled to be installed in Regional facilities. Completed

B. The current firewall migration is underway, and upon completion the segmented security zones will be in place as 

indicated. Security Zones have been configured and scheduled for implementation in Q1 2019.

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director, Infrastructure and Operations) on 08/20/2018:

A. The network locks have been purchased and are scheduled to be installed in Regional facilities

Estimated completion date: 12/31/2018

B. The current firewall migration is underway, and upon completion the segmented security zones will be in place as 

indicated. 

Estimated completion date: 12/31/2018

Information 

Technology Security 

and Data Backup 

Controls Audit

Cybersecurity Management - Network 

Security Systems

1. Identify operating systems in use on each ASA in use by the Region and identify all the latest versions available for 

installation.

2. Install the latest version available for all Cisco ASA firewalls.

3. Replace firewalls for a more recently released firewall system which is expected to be supported for the intended 

lifecycle of the firewall.

4. Use a vulnerability assessment solution to identify old versions of firmware and software. A vulnerability assessment 

solution generally provides information on new releases of firmware and software for monitored devices.

5. To limit exposure to known vulnerabilities in unsupported firmware and software releases, ensure equipment in use is 

running firmware and software which is still supported by the vendor.

1&2: Currently underway

3: ASA firewall replacements will be budgeted for in 2019.

4:The Region regularly conducts security assessments with 3rd party vendors to help identify these areas. The most 

recent being January 2018. We will be assessing a vulnerability assessment solution further.

5:It should be noted that mitigation solutions have been put in place to deal with unsupported firmware and software 

to limit vulnerabilities. Staff have enrolled to receive vendor notifications for hardware and software updates and do 

review and assess notifications for exposure and risk. We will be looking at enhancing our processes with a 

vulnerability assessment solution.
Julie Max

(Associate Director, 

Infrastructure and 

Operations)

In progress 

on time

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director, Infrastructure and Operations) on 01/15/2019:

2. Budget has been allocated in 2019 for the purchase of new ASA's as the current ones have memory limitations. 

Currently procuring hardware.  Anticipated completion Q3 2019

4. SAS product will need further investigation.

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director, Infrastructure and Operations) on 08/20/2018:

1. Complete

2. Budget has been allocated in 2019 for the purchase of new ASA's as the current ones have memory limitations.

Estimated completion date Q1/2019

3. Complete - Budget has been allocated in 2019 for the new hardware replacements of the current asa5505's with 

PA220's and support

4. SAS product will need further investigation

Estimated completion date: Q1/2019

5. Complete

Information 

Technology Security 

and Data Backup 

Controls Audit

Cybersecurity Management: Account 

and access management

1. Disable insecure management and authentication mechanisms on networking devices and in particular the firewalls 

and force the use of secure mechanisms like SSHv2.

2. Implement centralized authentication for management of networking devices to prevent credential reuse and sharing, 

allow for password requirements enforcement, and auditability of administrator actions.

1: We have set SSHv2 and disabled SSHv1 and have modified the configuration to telnet access. This has been 

confirmed and verified. No further action is required.

2: Will be implemented with the new firewall implementation and remainder of infrastructure devices by end of year.

Julie Max

(Associate Director, 

Infrastructure and 

Operations)

In progress 

late

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director, Infrastructure and Operations) on 01/15/2019:

1.Completed

2. This project is currently underway as ClearPass in being setup and configured by the vendor.  Completion Q1 2019

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director, Infrastructure and Operations) on 08/20/2018:

1. Completed

2. Will be completed as part of the Aruba ClearPass implementation

Estimated completion date: Q4, 2018 (Dec. 31, 2018)
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Audit Report Title
Observation Title and Brief 

Description
Recommendation per Audit Report Management Action Plan per Audit Report

Accountable Individual 

& Title

Original 

Completion 

Date 

MM/DD/YYYY

Issue Status Follow Up Comments

Information 

Technology Security 

and Data Backup 

Controls Audit

Change Management

1. Formalize and agree with the CAB which changes need to be run by the CAB before implementing.

2. Keep track of all changes, regardless of their importance or impact, in a formalized change management system 

storing at least the purpose, executor, approver, rationale, request and execution date.

1: It should be noted that a formal CAB process currently exists. Updates will be added to CAB terms of reference to 

include a more comprehensive list of standard changes needs along with preapproved SOP’s.

2: This will be addressed with changes to CAB processes.

Julie Max

(Associate Director, 

Infrastructure and 

Operations)

In progress 

on time

Management Action Plan updates  for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director, Infrastructure and Operations) on 01/15/2019:

1) Completed

2) Currently investigating a CMDB tool - Change Management Database

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director, Infrastructure and Operations) on 08/20/2018:

1. Current CAT policy is being revised to include the new processes identified in response, certain SOP's have been 

created for standard changes.

Estimated completion date: Q4 2018 (Dec 31, 2018)

2. Currently investigating a CMDB tool - Change Management Database

Estimated completion date: Q2, 2019 (June 30, 2019)

Information 

Technology Security 

and Data Backup 

Controls Audit

Patch Management

A. Recommendations for Findings A and B:

1. Create a patch management policy that outlines the objectives of patching, roles and responsibilities, steps to 

evaluate criticality, testing and handling of exemptions.

2. The patch management policy should include procedures when patches are not applied, risk is assessed, mitigation 

or acceptance is documented and approved by the appropriate level.

A 1: There is currently an SOP in place to implement operating systems securities patches. We will be looking at 

enhancing current practices.

A 2: We will be implementing a Risk Assessment Framework supported by documented approvals.

Julie Max

(Associate Director, 

Infrastructure and 

Operations)

In progress 

on time

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director, Infrastructure and Operations) on 01/15/2019:

1)  SOP for OS and security patches completed.

2) Risk Framework is being developed.

As per correspondence with Julie Max (Associate Director, Infrastructure and Operations) on 08/20/2018:, 

1. Currently underway

Estimated completion date: 12/31/2018

2. Currently underway

Estimated completion date: 12/31/2018

Payroll Audit: Phase 

1 - Timekeeping 

Process

Lack of Management Approval of 

Timekeeping in some Divisions

1. Supervisors/Managers should be given Kronos user logins.

2. The HR Division, in consultation with business units, should develop an approval/sign off business process whereby 

Supervisors/Managers are reviewing and signing off on the timecards of the staff that they supervise in a consistent 

manner.

3. In the longer term, HR Division should investigate the feasbility of designing a process which consolidates the 

Supervisor/Manager's approval of time entries and the encoding of time entries into one step.

1. Management is conducting a cost benefit review of adding additional manager timekeeping licenses, allowing for 

manager level approvals, against the cost/risk of potential payroll errors. 

2. Management fully supports the need for appropriate manager level oversight on all payroll costs in a consistent 

fashion. Some operational areas (i.e.: Children's Services) have a well documented manager level approval process 

for timekeeping sign off developed by HR, as well as manager licenses to electronically support this work.  

Depending on the outcome of item 1 above, HR will provide a documented corporate wide business process that 

supports manager electronic approval, or a suitable alternative to ensure manager level oversight.

3. Management acknowledges the benefits of the time entry and approval being consolidated into one step. While 

there are technical constraints in implementing this today, HR has included this items as part of their broader HRIS 

review project currently underway.

Peter Wadsworth 

(Director, Human 

Resources)

Linda Gigliotti 

(Associate Director, 

Employee Services)

Cindy Creemer

(Manager, Employee 

Services)

09/30/2019
In progress 

on time

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Linda Gigliotti (Associate Director, Employee Services) on 12/21/2018:

This review is expected to be completed by the deadline.

Payroll Audit: Phase 

1 - Timekeeping 

Process

Developing Training and Guidelines

1. Manuals that detail step-by-step procedures should be updated to include Niagara Region business procedures. This 

will allow for time keeping tasks to be completed consistently throughout the corporation. 

2. The HR division should develop training modules for Kronos users. The training should educate the user on the task 

associated with their specific role(s) within the timekeeping process. The format of training (on-line, in person, etc.) 

should be decided upon by the HR division in order to effectively suit the corporation. 

3. A Champion for each collective agreement should be decided upon and communicated to the encoder group so that 

when questions arise, Encoders have the necessary resources. 

4. Management from respective business units should develop backup/coverage plan for instances when their main 

Encoder is away from the office or otherwise unable to complete the encoding.

1. Management fully supports updating training materials to include Niagara Region business procedures.

2. Management supports the delivery of timekeeping training and is developing online tools to create greater 

effectiveness, consistency, timeliness and access in comparison to the prior classroom provided training. 

3. Management has considered this. Escalated questions from timekeepers are managed by HR, and recommends 

that any additional supports in a specific operating area can be determined within the division. 

4. Management supports this recommendation and will continue to encourage adequate back up support amongst 

timekeepers in each operating area. The requirement to utlize a back up resource for one's own encoding will 

reinforce this need, as per Observation 2. 

Linda Gigliotti

(Associate Director, 

Employee Services)

09/30/2019
In progress 

on time

Management Action Plan updates for Q2 2019 have not been received

As per correspondence with Linda Gigliotti (Associate Director, Employee Services) on 12/21/2018:

This review is expected to be completed by the deadline.

Payroll Audit: Phase 

2 - Payroll 

Processing

Locking excel spreadsheets to avoid 

minor errors

HR Management should enable spreadsheet controls to protect the integrity and accuracy of the payroll data. Formula 

cells in the excel templates should be locked, to ensure that only authorized changes to the cells are done. Locking the 

formula cells will mitigate the risk that an error in the spreadsheet may occur.

Management is very supportive of adding locks on the excel template tools created in order to ensure that formulas 

are not inadvertently edited/deleted. This includes current/existing excel tools and will also incorporate as a 

standard for templates created in the future.
Linda Gigliotti, Associate 

Director, Employee 

Services

01-Nov-18 Completed

As per discussion with Linda Gigliotti (Associate Director, Employee Services) on 12/21/2018:

This recommendation has been completed.  All templates are now locked.

Controlled 

Medications 

Inventory

NEMS - Internal controlled 

medications policy needs to be 

updated

1. NEMS Management should update the internal policy to include all current business process.

2. Once the internal policies have been updated, all changes should be communicated to staff. 

1. The recommended updates will be made within the policy.

2. Training surrounding the updates will be delivered to affected staff. Michael Franklin, 

Commander, Quality 

Managemenr and 

Professional Standards

06-01-2019
In progress 

on time

As per correspondence with Michael Franklin (Commander, Quality Management and Professional Standards) 

on Apr 10, 2019:

1. NEMS is working on the policy update, and  the update is scheduled to be completed prior to their internal Spring 

Training.

2. If the policy update is completed prior to the Spring Training, NEMS is able to meeting the current deadline.   If it is 

delayed,  the completion date would be by August 1, 2019

Controlled 

Medications 

Inventory

LTC Homes - Missing documentation

1. Management, along with the pharmacy service provider if possible, should conduct follow up re-training of the new 

business processes implemented by the new pharmacy service provider.

2. When the Homes are conducting their own documentation inspections, if trends in missing documentation or errors 

are observed, they should be communicated and corrected with Home staff. Follow up training should be completed 

with staff where Home Management deems necessary.

1. Finalize implementation of the final phase of the pharmacy transition plan including audit of new systems and 

processes to determine training needs. Will ensure through this process that all required documentation as per the 

new pharmacy provider is captured in a timely manner.

2. Ensure that all audits are consistently completed and that training needs identified through audits are addressed.
Kim Eros, Associate 

Director Clinical and 

Support Services

04-15-2019 Completed

As per correspondence with Kim Eros (Associate Director Clinical

and Support Services) on Apr 4, 2019:

The contracted pharmacy provider has completed education session in each of the Homes in Q1 of 2019. The Homes 

and pharmacy continues to audit.
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Audit Report Title
Observation Title and Brief 
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Recommendation per Audit Report Management Action Plan per Audit Report

Accountable Individual 

& Title

Original 

Completion 

Date 

MM/DD/YYYY

Issue Status Follow Up Comments

Accounts Payable 

Audit

Maintenance and review of vendor 

master file information

1)    Maintenance should be conducted on the master vendor file on a regular basis (i.e. at least annually).  This would 

include the following activities to ensure completeness and accuracy:

a) Review and update the vendor master information.

b) Obtain missing or incomplete data such as missing telephone numbers, postal address, complete name, and emails.  

c) Update any out of date information

d) Determine if there are any vendors (i.e. duplicate vendors) that should be removed from the master file. 

e) Archive inactive vendors which have had no business activity for a certain amount of time (i.e. for over 18 months). If 

the vendor is archived, their information can be easily accessed for reinstatement, if needed. By removing inactive 

vendors, the list becomes leaner and records are easier to access, increasing employee productivity through reduced 

processing time.

Maintenance activities should include department representatives (in addition to Finance staff), if possible, as they may 

have insight into information that is old, missing or incorrect. 

 

The Region should also consider if any of the master vendor file review or maintenance activities can be automated as 

some cleanup activities lend themselves well to automation. In addition, the Region may want to consider the use of a 

vendor self-service portal where individual vendors can update their information.

2) On a regular basis, conduct analysis and further review on areas which may uncover fictitious vendors, such as 

comparing vendor and employee addresses and vendor use of P.O. Box addresses.

1.    While maintenance on the master vendor file including the activities identified in the recommendation is not 

currently an established process, Procurement is in agreement with the audit recommendation that it should be.  

Procurement (Strategic Acquisitions, specifically Strategic Sourcing) with assistance from the ERP Support team 

will develop a new process (completed annually) for the Supplier Administration function which gives due 

consideration to the activities/requirements identified above.

Process considerations for initial update and ongoing maintenance could include: Procurement seeking assistance 

from ERP Support team to extrapolate the vendor data from PeopleSoft Financials and then in conjunction with 

Finance identify the priority data fields which are omitted/important. Supplier Admin would obtain the missing 

information or out of date information for the purposes of updating the master vendor file, seeking assistance from 

the Client Department on an as and when required basis.

With regards to the automation of the master vendor file review or maintenance activities, Procurement will 

coordinate with the ERP Support team to explore this but it is our understanding that this would not be possible 

without customization of the PeopleSoft Financials.

With regards to recommendation 1d), Procurement is in agreement that it is important to determine if there are any 

vendors (i.e. duplicate vendors) that should be removed from the master file but would add that the search would be 

for “true duplicates” as business decisions during the implementation of PeopleSoft Financials (Deloitte) gave due 

consideration the creation of duplicate vendor master files, specifically Yardi Landlords, differing currencies and 

utilities on case to case basis.

With regards to recommendation 1e), Procurement is appreciative of comment however at this time it would not be 

Procurements intent to create a separate process to inactivate vendors (and subsequently re-activate them) as we 

do not envision a gain in efficiency vis a vis a direct correlation between the number of records, accessibility to data 

and efficiency/productivity. The database which resides within PeopleSoft Financials is solely maintained in an 

electronic format (no paper copies) and is both searchable by vendor name and exportable to Excel

Bart Menage, Director, 

Procurement & Strategic 

Acquisitions

11/30/2019
In progress 

on time

As per Correspondence with Bart Menage (Director, Procurement & Strategic Acquisitions) on 04/16/2019:

"No definitive update at this point in time. I believe we had provided actions dates on the audit responses we were 

going to action. I will review and these and provide confirmation of any status updates based on those initial 

response."

Accounts Payable 

Audit

 System logging and reporting of 

delegation of authority

Consider review of the PeopleSoft system to determine if the start and end dates of users who have delegated their 

approval authority can be captured within the system and reported on. 

At this time, we do not have the capability in our current version of PeopleSoft Financials to audit the start and end 

dates of when users have turned on their delegated authority.  Although a user can choose the start and end date 

when turning on the delegation function, the back end table in PeopleSoft Financials that tracks delegation is not 

effective dated and therefore only records that the function was turned on (not as of/when).  As such, we can run a 

report that shows everyone who has delegation turned on today, but cannot run an historical version of that report.

However, at any point in time, we can easily provide a history of when a delegation of authority was used to 

approve something (as we provided for the purpose of this audit).  Every transaction records when it has been 

approved “on behalf of” someone else.  For example:

• Director of Finance, Helen Chamberlain, turns on delegation of authority for March 4 – 8, 2019, assigning the 

Associate Director, Budget Planning and Strategy, Margaret Murphy, as her delegate.

• During that period, Margaret Murphy approves several purchase orders, travel and expense reports, and vouchers 

that would usually be approved by the Director role.

• PeopleSoft Financials records each of those transactions as “Margaret Murphy approved on behalf of Helen 

Chamberlain”. 

If the delegator (Helen Chamberlain, in this example) would like to know what transactions were approved in her 

absence, PeopleSoft Financials is able to provide that information.

If the concern is that an employee could assign a delegate for the length of their employment and therefore never 

directly approve transactions, then the available report would show that the employee’s user ID has never approved 

a transaction.  

To our knowledge, there is no PeopleSoft Financials out-of-the-box audit logging process that shows effective 

dating for the delegation function.  In theory, we could customize a solution; however, our system strategy is to 

minimize any customizations and use configuration where possible (to ensure system integrity and reduce 

opportunity for errors during patching and upgrades).  Given that we are able to report on when delegation of 

 Erin.Amirault, Associate 

Director, Finance 

Operations and Systems

11/30/2019
In progress 

on time

As per Correspondnce with Erin Amirault (Associate Director, Finance Operations and Systems) on 

04/12/2019: 

More definitive update is not available at this time. We are still planning the PeopleSoft Financials upgrade for 

November with initial review and testing to start in September, however final dates are still to be determined.  We will 

review at that time if functionality will change to allow for logging of when delegation has been turned on. At this time 

we do not anticipate that such a logging function will be available.
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 Enterprise Resource Management Services  
1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, Thorold, ON L2V 4T7 

905-980-6000  Toll-free: 1-800-263-7215 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 AC-C 15-2019 

Subject: Internal Audit Plan Progress Update Dashboard 

Date: May 6, 2019 

To: Audit Committee 

From: Maciej Jurczyk, Director, Internal Control & Organizational Performance 

 
On a quarterly basis, Internal Control & Organizational Performance submits a 
performance dashboard to the Audit Committee.  The objective is to demonstrate 
progress against the Annual Internal Audit Plan and provide other key performance 
indicators in a one-page summary.  The dashboard is attached as Appendix 1 to AC-C 
15-2019.  
 
Staff are requesting to defer the Waste Management Contract Compliance Audit to 
2020.   
 
The 2019 Internal Audit Plan (see AC-C 5-2019) was approved on February 4, 2019 by 
Audit Committee and ratified by Council on February 28, 2019.  
 
Respectfully submitted and signed by,  
 
 
________________________________  
Maciej Jurczyk, CPA, CMA, CIA, CRMA  
Director  
Internal Control & Organizational Performance 
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2017 Interim Audit Work Plan (AC-C 14-2017) Audit Phase Project Status Due Date Dept & Division under review $ under review

Purchasing Card 100% - Complete 31-Oct-17 ERMS, Procurement $9,629,000

Fleet Parts Inventory & Fuel 100% - Complete 9-Nov-17 Public Works, Transportation & Waste $1,883,000

Cash Handling 100% - Complete 15-Jan-18 Corporate-wide $16,180,000

Mobile Telecommunications 100% - Complete 15-Jan-18 Corporate Services, IT $548,000

Cleaning Contract 100% - Complete 15-Jan-18 Corporate Services, Facilities $665,000

2018 Audit Plan (AC-C 6-2017)

Grants & Incentives: Phase 1 100% - Complete 7-May-18 Planning/Development & Ec/Dev $8,746,000

Grants & Incentives: Phase 2 100% - Complete 18-Jun-18 Planning/Development & Ec/Dev $8,746,000

Waste and Recycling Drop-Off Depot Agreement 100% - Complete 30-Mar-18 Public Works, Waste Management $104,000

Procurement: Bidding / Tendering process 100% - Complete 31-Dec-18 ERMS, Procurement $470,786,000

Payroll Phase 1: Time-keeping 100% - Complete 10-Sep-18 Corporate-wide $251,284,000

Payroll Phase 2: Payroll processing 100% - Complete 24-Oct-18 Corporate Services, HR $251,284,000

Controlled Medication Inventory 100% - Complete 31-Dec-18 Public Health & Community Services $9,000

Accounts Payable 100% - Complete 28-Feb-19 ERMS, FMP $385,000,000

IT General Controls 100% - Complete 30-Apr-18 Corporate Services, IT Not Applicable

Chippawa CSO Internal Review 100% - Complete 10-Sep-18 Public Works, W/WW $4,692,000

Children's Services Risk Assessment 100% - Complete 28-Feb-19 Community Services, Children's $29,468,000

2019 Audit Plan (AC-C 5-2019)

Homelessness Service Providers Contract Compliance 40% Fieldwork In Progress 24-Jun-19 Community Services, Homelessness $11,233,000

Waste Management Contract Compliance 30% Fieldwork Deferred 24-Jun-19 Public Works, Waste Management $21,044,000

Employee Benefits Claims 10% Planning In Progress 9-Sep-19 Corporate Services, HR $19,940,000

HR On-boarding & Off-boarding Audit 0% - Not started 2-Dec-19 Corporate Services, HR $74,000

Procurement: Sole / Single sourced 0% - Not started 9-Sep-19 ERMS, Procurement $44,426,000

MTO Driver Certification Program Audit 0% - Not started 2-Dec-19 Public Works, Transportation TBD

Long Term Care Homes Risk Assessment 0% - Not started 2-Dec-19 Community Services, Seniors TBD

Water Treatment Operations Risk Assessment 0% - Not started 2-Dec-19 Public Works, W/WW $572,000

Audit Project Title Total Not Started

On 

schedule

Behind 

schedule On Hold Fully implemented

2015 NRH Capital Projects 6 - - - - 6

2015 Burgoyne Bridge 8 - - 1 1 6

2015 Road Maintenance 3 - - - - 3

2016 Fleet Management 4 - - 1 - 3

2017 Purchasing Card 3 - - - - 3

2017 Fleet Parts Inv. & Fuel 9 1 - 3 1 4

2017 Telecom 8 - - 3 - 8

2017 Cash Handling 1 - - - - 1

2017 Cleaning Contracts 3 - - - - 3

2018 Grants & Incentives - 1 0 - - - - -

2018 Grants & Incentives - 2 4 - 4 - - -

2018 Waste & Recycling 2 - - 1 - 1

2018 IT General Controls 20 - 3 2 - 15

2018 Payroll Audit - Phase 1 3 - 2 - - 1

2018 Payroll Audit - Phase 2 1 - - - - 1

2018 Controlled Medications 3 - 1 - - 2

2018 Accounts Payable 2 - 2 - - -

TOTAL # of Issues 80 1 12 11 2 57

Audit Project Title Total Not Started

On 

schedule

Behind 

schedule On Hold Fully implemented

Corporate Administration 5 - - - 1 4

Corporate Services 30 - 5 3 - 22

Community Services 2 - - - - 2

ERMS 14 - 2 - - 12

Planning & Development 4 - 4 - - -

Public Health 4 - 1 2 - 1

Public Works 15 1 - 3 1 10

Other: NRH 6 - - - - 6

TOTAL # of Issues 80 1 12 8 2 57

Survey Areas of Interest 2017 2018 2019 Details

Professional Proficiency of Auditors 92.1% 81.5% NA Objectivity, professionalism, and knowledge of program areas.

Audit Planning 87.4% 83.3% NA Communication effectiveness of scope, objectives, timing and approach.

Audit Fieldwork/Testing 92.7% 81.1% NA Effective use of client's time.

Audit Report 86.2% 85.0% NA Clear, concise report with timely and meaningful recommendations.

General Thoughts 86.4% 69.6% NA Overall benefit of audit and conduct of ICOP team.

AVERAGE SCORE 89.5% 80.6% NA

ICOP Action Plans

Personnel: Title: Credentials: Start Date:

Maciej Jurczyk Director CPA, CMA, CIA, CRMA 26-Jun-17

Frank Marcella Internal Auditor MPA, BEd, CGAP 25-Aug-14

Joan Ugwu Process & Compliance Auditor CFE 18-Feb-19

Vacant Process & Compliance Auditor -

Xiang Henrik Gao Internal Audit Analyst MBA 10-Sep-18

Bartlomiej Gora Internal Audit Co-op Student 4-Sep-18

 Admin / Human Resources

Annual Audit Plan Status

Post Audit Survey Results

Recommendations Status

ICOP has developed an Audit Manual to standardize our internal practices.  This Audit Manual is used for the training and 

on-boarding of new Audit Staff.  The Audit Manual will be reviewed and updated annually.  No surveys yet in 2019.

Outstanding Recommendations:

There are 23 outstanding audit recommendations across all business units (23 when previously reported to the Audit Committee in AC-C 12-2019).  Progress is being 

made against all outstanding Recommendations, and ICOP staff are confident all will be completed within a reasonable period of time.  Greater detail is identified in 

AC-C 14-2019.

                    INTERNAL CONTROL & ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE                                                                       .               

AUDIT PLAN PROGRESS UPDATE                                              Current as of April 18, 2019

Progress Commentary:

 - The objective of the 2019 Internal Audit Plan is to provide independent, objective assurance and advisory services designed to add value through meaningful 

recommendations and to improve Niagara Region's operations and system of internal controls

 - Internal Control & Organization Performance (ICOP) has completed all projects identified in the 2017 Interim Audit Workplan (AC-C 14-2017); these were previously 

presented to the Audit Committee.  ICOP completed eleven audit projects from the 2018 Audit Plan (AC-C 6-2017); these were also reported to Audit Committee 

 - The 2019 Audit Plan (AC-C 5-2019); was approved by Audit Committee on February 4, 2019 and ratified by Council on February 28, 2019.  The theme of this audit 

plan is contract compliance with Niagara Region's major vendors; whereas the theme of the last audit plan was Procurement (Procure-to-Pay cycle).  The 

Homelessness Review is in the fieldwork stage while the Employee Benefit Claims Audit is in preliminary planning.  ICOP Staff separated the Waste Management 

Contract Compliance Audit project into two phases: Phase 1 objectives included reviewing the prospective May 2019 RFP and providing feedback to the Waste 

Management Service division; while Phase 2 involved a review of Waste Management contract management practices - staff are requesting to defer this portion to 

2020.  
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100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Assurance Projects

Changes to 2019 Audit Plan:

 1. Requesting to defer Waste Management Contract Compliance Audit to 2020.  

Other on-going projects & activities:

 - Recruiting vacant Process & Compliance Auditor

 - Training & Professional Development
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